Qm(ord
Housmg
) /\ufhorlfy

Agenda, Minutes, Reports, and Resolutions
Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting
Monday July 24, 2023, at 6:00 pm
Hope White, Chairwoman

Marcus D. Goodson, Interim Chief Executive Officer



H.

M Authority

Sanford

Housing

Sanford Housing Authority (SHA)
Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting
AGENDA

Date: July 24, 2023

Time: 6:00 pm

Place: Sanford Housing Authority (SHA)
317 Chatham St. (Central Office)
Sanford, NC 27330

Please silence all cell phones and refrain from cell phone use during the meeting

I

W

2 e S A

10.

11.

12,

13.

Roll Call

Adoption of Minutes-May 22, 2023, Regular Board Meeting

Audit Report for FYE September 30, 2022-Prepared by Barton, Gonzalez, & Myers
P.A., Certified Public Accountants (See Attachment)

Financial Report (See Attachment)

Department Head Reports

Public Housing and Maintenance Reports
RAD-LIHTC Housing and Maintenance Reports
HCV Reports

Resident Services Report

Development Report (See Attachment)

e Request for Qualifications for Co-Developer Partner for Preservation of Stewart
Manor

New Business/Board of Commissioners’ Comments
e Utility Allowances for Housing Choice Voucher (See Attachment)

Public Comments

Closed Session (If needed)

Adjournment



Sanford
ﬂ\ Housmg
m Authority

Board of Commissioners Meeting Monday May 22, 2023

1. A meeting of the Board of Commissioners for Sanford Housing Authority was held on
Monday May 22, 2023, at 6:05 pm at SHA Central Office, 1000 Carthage Street,
Sanford, NC 27330. Notice of this meeting was duly posted.

2. Roll Call:

ATTENDANCE:

Commissioner Hope White, Chairperson
Commissioner William Newby, Vice Chairperson
Commissioner Erin Britton

Commissioner Carolyn Gilchrist

ABSENT:
Commissioner PJ Patel
Commissioner Karen Wicker

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Ms. White asked for a motion to be made to approve the board minutes from the April 24, 2023,
regular board minutes. Mr. Newby moved to approve the April 24, 2023, board minutes. Ms.
Gilchrist seconded the motion; all were in favor. The motion passed unanimously.

Financial Report

Mr. Goodson stated that we would not have a financial report for this board meeting but would
have one at the next board meeting.

Public Housing and Maintenance Reports
Linden Heights, Utley Plaza, Foushee Heights

Michelle stated that with the total units we are at 90%. She said that there has been a delay for
getting the units turned. The company finished at Harris Court so soon they will be coming
back to Foushee Heights. Michelle said that we have people who want to move in, but we just
need the units turned. Ms. White asked what was done about the waitlist and Michelle said that
she was able to generate the waiting list from Yardi and she has called the first 25 on the list as
well as agencies that were listed on their application because a lot of them were in homeless
shelters and so none have responded. Tonya had a suggestion that we send letters out to
everyone who was on the waiting list to make sure that we have not missed anyone. Michelle
said that she has not had success with phone calls so she will also start going through the



waiting list and when she does not receive a response back, she will check them as inactive in
Yardi. Mr. Goodson stated that we would be purging the waiting list. Ms. White asked how
many people approximately is on the waiting list. Tonya said that about 75 were on that
waiting list and some of them have been housed. Michelle said that she had a handicapped
accessible unit and now has someone who wants the unit who is handicapped. Ms. White asked
if it is time to open back up the waiting list and Michelle said no because she still has some
people who applied in the past two years, and she is calling those people first.

Michelle said that they are continuing to charge tenants for repairs to units. Ms. White asked
how the properties are getting the work orders done so quickly. Mr. Goodson said that we hired
a company to turn units and so now maintenance can concentrate on work orders and there was
a change in the leader of the maintenance department. Ms. White said that she is just used to
work orders being outstanding for about 14 days. Michelle said that she also stays on
maintenance by showing that their work orders are completed, even calling the tenants to follow
up to make sure that the work was done. Michelle stressed that she tells the maintenance staff
that they need to have good customer service and get the work done. Mr. Goodson stated that at
every staff meeting he talks about customer service. He also stated that we have good Property
Managers and Michelle is very conscientious. He said that Danielle and LaToya are relatively
new and walked into a difficult position but are doing well. He also stated that we already have
Tonya in Resident Services; what she did at Stewart Manor was remarkable.

Stewart Manor & Harris Court

Ms. White asked if they had finished the plumbing at Harris Court and Tonya Davis-Buie
replied, yes.

RAD (LIHTC) Housing & Maintenance Reports

Danielle stated that Matthews Court only has 1 vacancy, but she must get that from the courts.
She said that someone passed away and no one got the items out of the unit. Ms. White asked if
the Banks Law firm said that we had to go through the court and Danielle replied yes.
Therefore, Matthews court is at 98%

Garden-Gilmore Terrace is up to 80% occupied and there are 24 vacant units. She said that we
have been having some issues with getting the units inspected. She said that we just had about
9 or 10 that passed so we will have some move-ins this week because the units have already
been assigned.

Danielle said that all units remaining are 3-bedroom units. Ms. White asked that Danielle check
the police report because she has heard about shootings in Garden and Gilmore Terrace.
Danielle said that the police officer came to her about an Amber alert but not a shooting. Ms.
White said that on April 28, there was a shooting and that’s a fact. Mr. Goodson asked if they
had painted over the graffiti, Danielle said that she did not know but would check into it. Ms.
White asked what the graffiti said and where it was. Milton Toomer, Maintenance Supervisor



said that it was whatever their group name is and it’s on Clark Circle. Mr. Goodson said that
you must be careful when covering it because of gangs.

Ms. White asked if there was a waiting list for the properties and Danielle said yes. She has
qualified some who applied but others did not qualify. She tries to get the units to pass
inspection first so now she can move in people who qualify.

There were no additional questions.
HCYV Report

Keren asked if there were any questions. Ms. White said that we are almost there. Ms. White
asked if we had started to work on the new applications, Keren replied yes. She said that they
must go by the preferences first and verify them first. Ms. White said that we are almost there.

There were no additional questions.

Resident Services Report

Ms. White asked if Shkera was going to do anything for Father’s Day, Shkera replied no but she
is planning a Family Day that will invite the whole family and community to participate. She
said that the event would be held on Thursday June 24, 2023, at the Gilmore Terrace baseball
field. She said that she has received confirmations from Blue Cross Blue Shield and other
companies. Mr. Goodson said that they would need to speak about the field because it is under
contract. Shkera said that she called the contact that Mr. Goodson gave her for the organization
and got clearance for that date. Ms. White asked if she considered the Burke Center; Shkera
replied that part of the issue with the Burke Center is their driveway is not paved and the Food
Bank cannot deliver on the driveway. She said that the Food Bank did a site visit and did
approve the baseball field and for us to have a food pantry at First Street. Ms. White said that
she was asking because June is hot, and it may be raining. Shkera said that she would reach out
to the vendors to see if they could bring tents. She said that she had to send pictures and then
the Food Bank came out to conduct a site visit before approving the location. Ms. White said
that she is concerned about it being in June at 1:00 pm because of the heat, especially because
we have seniors coming out. Ms. Britton said that June probably is better than July or August,
which is the latter part of the summer. Shkera said that she will try to collaborate with Danielle
to allow the seniors to cool off in the community center at Gilmore Terrace. Mr. Goodson said
that we do need to at least have a big tent for the event. Ms. White asked if she considered
Matthews Court Community Center and Shkera said that for all the vendors and participants
coming, there is not enough space. Mr. Goodson asked about how big the event is and would
there be cookout food. Ms. White said that it is amazing and a big turnout. Shkera said that
she has asked for sponsors from restaurants for items for cook out food. Mr. Goodson said that
now people have Food Trucks to come out and give discounts.



Development & Modernization Report

Mr. Goodson stated that we need to focus all our development efforts on Stewart Manor. He is
working with Stogner & A and E Firm to develop a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) done by
the middle of June or sooner. Ms. White asked if we had one for Matthews Garden & Gillmore.
Mr. Goodson said that he did a search of Shannon’s email to see if he could find it, but he did
not find anything. Ms. White said that she would see if she has it. Mr. Goodson said that this
one would be different because Stewart Manor is a preservation project and not a Section 18
project which is demolition. He said that we must get Stewart Manor back because we need the
99 units. He said that we’ll get the RFQ out so that we can get a co-developer that we choose
that will work within the split that we would like and the ownership structure. Mr. Goodson
explained that we should get proposals in from developers. Mr. Haire asked if this was a
request for proposal and how much money it would bring in. Mr. Goodson said that it would at
least be about $50,000 per door or more. He said that we would get developer fees at closing,
when we get to a certain part of renovation, when we close out the project, and when we get to
stabilization. Mr. Goodson said that we’ll get our share, and the co-developer will get their fee.
Mr. Goodson said that Stogner said that some developers only get about a 10% developer fee
and Mr. Goodson said that we are starting off the negotiations at a 50/50 split; we are bringing
the property to the table as well as Section 8 vouchers if HUD approves them. If we go RAD
conversion, we’ll get Section 8 vouchers or Section 8 rents like MGG. He said that whoever we
select will know what we are doing. He said that he is hoping that we could have some serious
talks with the City and County about funding.

Mr. Haire said that there is a new company that is coming which will generate a lot of revenue.
Sanford has a direct connection to the Cape Fear River water supply and will now start selling
some to Pittsboro. He said, once the money starts coming in, then you can start asking for help.
Mr. Goodson said that he is also working on the HUD emergency grant with Stogner as well to
resubmit it for Stewart Manor. He said that Stewart Manor is boarded up, but we must get it
back online as quickly and strategically as possible because of vagrants who are trying to steal
copper and other valuable components.

Interim CEQO’s Report

Mr. Goodson reiterated that we are scheduled to move out this week, and we are boxed up but
there is a delay because of the internet connection with Spectrum. Ms. White asked if we

Ms. White asked whose responsibility it would be to change out the letterhead and Mr.
Goodson said that we would work on that. He also said that he would contact HUD himself to
update the address.

Mr. Goodson said that we will be speaking with the landlord about putting a drop box on the
side door. Mr. Goodson stated that Sherri Campanale, the new Director of Operations, would
be starting June 22, 2023. He said that Sherri worked for about 16 years in Florida and took
over when he left the agency. He said that she is excellent, has experience in public housing,



Section 8, and RAD; she is a go-getter and no-nonsense person, and the board and staff will like
her. He said that she is a hard worker and will get the job done.

New Business

Ms. White asked for a motion to approve health dental and vision insurance renewal. Mr.
Newby motioned to approve; Ms. Gilchrist seconded the motion; All were in favor. The motion
passed unanimously.

Mr. Goodson pointed out that everything that we do is to the benefit of the employees but also
for the company. He said that typically the agency does not cover spouse and child; the
employee covers that.

Mr. Goodson said that he met with the staff, and we are being fair but conducting business the
way that it needs to be conducted. Ms. White asked if we got any kickback for it. Mr. Goodson
said that the Benefits Coordinator came out and offered some other solutions so he thinks
everyone is ok now.

Ms. White said that most companies pay for the benefits for the employee, and they can add
their family at a flat rate.

Anesha spoke said that we conducted a survey where employees could voice their opinion about
which company that they wanted to go through between Blue Cross Blue Shield and Aetna and
13 out of 18 employees who responded by the deadline and the results were unanimous that we
remain with Blue Cross Blue Shield.

Ms. White asked for someone to make a motion to adjourn. Mr. Newby motioned to adjourn. Ms.
Gilchrist seconded the motion; All were in favor. The motion passed unanimously. The meeting
was adjourned at approximately 6:50 pm.

Closed Session
There was no close session.
Adjournment

Ms. White asked for someone to make a motion to adjourn. Mr. Newby motioned to adjourn. Ms.
Gilchrist seconded the motion; All were in favor. The motion passed unanimously. The meeting
was adjourned at approximately 6:50 pm.

Attest Marcus D. Goodson Date



3. Audit Report for FYE September 30, 2022-Prepared by Barton, Gonzalez, & Myers
P.A., Certified Public Accountants (Attached)



MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Commissioners
Db

From: Marcus D. Goodson, Interim CEO

Date: July 19, 2023

Subject: FYE September 2022 Audit Report

Enclosed for your review is the Sanford Housing Authority’s FYE September 2022 Audit Report as
prepared by Barton, Gonzalez & Myers, P.A. During the upcoming board meeting Sergio Gonzalez, CPA
will attend the meeting via Zoom to present the Audit Report and answer any questions the board may
have. There was one (1) Finding identified by the auditors and can be found on page 56, which will be
discussed during the presentation.



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

AUDIT REPORT

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Table of Contents

September 30, 2022

Page
Independent AUAItOI'S REPOM .........uu ittt et e e e e e e e et et e e e ettt e et e e e eateeenneannnns 1-2
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&AY) ........ccuuiiiiiiiiiiii et 3-11
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary FUNA TYPE .........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e 12
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position - Proprietary Fund Type . 13
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary FUNd TYPe..........ccooiiiiiiieiiiiiicee e 14
Notes to Financial StatemeEnts ........c.ccvveiiiiiiii e 15-37
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Combining Schedule of Net Position - Proprietary FuUNd Type........cccoooiiiiiiiieeeeieeeeee e, 38
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position -
Proprietary FUNA Ty P ...ttt e e e e e e et r e e e e e e e ee e e e e eaeras 39
Statement of Revenues and Expenses — Budget to Actual (Non-GAAP)
Low Rent Public HOUSING ProJECES .......veiiiiiiiieccee et rae e 40
HOoUSING ChoiCE VOUCREIS .......oiiieiiiiee e e et rae e e e e 41
o O O 42
BUSINESS ACHVITIES ouvm cuuninssimunims sosunvmim o sup s i 5 555500 55 Bossiinias 58 5o F5874 52 5 458393 oo 590 e i £ T E e 600 43
L1 S TR —— 44
Statement of Capital Fund Program COStS ..........oooiiiiiiiiiiiic e 45
SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards ..o, 46-47
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for each Major Program and on Internal
Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance .............ccccooovieiieeiiiniiiecnnee, 48-50
Schedule of Findings and Questioned CostS............ocoviiiiiii e 51-53
Summary Schedule of Prior Year FINAINGS .......cc.cooiiiiiiiiiiie et 54-55
CorreCtivVe ACHION PIAN ...t e e e e et e e e et 56-57
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS .......c.ooiiiiiiiiie e 58
BN A S ENIE T L VTR oo oo osmauns cosmspepion svsmamniogs 5185 o5esss 6o i o i 4 S 5 B0 S 55 S 59

FINANCIAL DATA BUHBIIULE .. .. covne comuuis sssosmmsnas svtommonss s simsyesssms s s i sssnis s wiess s 60-65



Barton,
Gonzalez

& Myers, P.A.

&\ Certified Public Accountants

13137 - 66th Street, Largo, FL 33773
Phone: (727) 344-1040 Fax: (727) 533-8483

www.bgm.cpa

Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Commissioners
Sanford Housing Authority
Sanford, North Carolina

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate discretely presented
component unit of the Sanford Housing Authority (“Authority") as of and for the year ended September 30, 2022, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units of the
Sanford Housing Authority as of September 30, 2022 and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We did not audit the financial statements of Matthews Garden Gilmore, LLC (who is the 100% member of Matthews Court LLC and
Garden Gilmore LLC), “the Discrete Component Unit", which represent 77 percent, 35 percent, and 20 percent, respectively, of the
assets, net position, and operating revenues of the Authority. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report
has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Discrete Component Unit, is based solely
on the report of the other auditors.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial
statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Govemment Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the

financial statements.



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Govermment Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt
about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis on
pages 3 through 11 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Authority’s basic
financial statements. The accompanying financial information listed in the Table of Contents as Supplementary Information, the Financial
Data Schedule and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information listed in the
Table of Contents, the Financial Data Schedule and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 22, 2023 on our consideration of the
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

/A
N “’;:— Py
6--'\,;,‘,:,-’»-'- ‘ --"‘\,.\.u e E

Barton, Gonzalez & Myers, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
June 22, 2023

e DA
( o "‘ .

<o
-«h--~.a



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Management Discussion and Analysis

September 30, 2022

The Housing Authority of Sanford (“the Authority”) management’s discussion and analysis is designed to (a)
assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the Authority’s
financial activity, (c) identify changes in the Authority’s financial position (its ability to address the next and
subsequent year challenges), and (d) identify individual fund issues or concerns.

Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current Fiscal Year's
(FY) activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Authority’s
financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The Authority’'s net position decreased by $1,237,886 or 11.64% during 2022 due to a decrease in
government grants, operating subsidy, and other income. Since the Authority engages only in
business-type activities, the decrease is in the category of business-type net position. The net
position was $9.4 million and $10.6 million for FY 2022 and FY 2021, respectively.

e The business-type activity revenue decreased by $1,714,756 or 19.40% during FY 2022. The primary
reason for the decrease in revenue was due to a decrease in capital grants, operating subsidy, and
other income. Total revenue was $7.1 million and $8.8 million for FY 2022 and FY 2021, respectively.

e The total expenses of all Authority programs decreased by $152,694 or 1.79%. Primary reasons for
the decrease in expenses were attributable to decreased housing assistance payments and
administrative expenses. Total expenses were $8.4 million and $8.5 million for FY 2022 and FY 2021,
respectively.



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Management Discussion and Analysis

September 30, 2022

This is a presentation of the Authority’s financial statements. The following graphic outline is provided for
your review:

MD&A

~ Management’s Discussion
and Analysis ~

Basic Financial Statements

~ Authority-wide Financial Statements ~
~ Notes to Financial Statements ~

Other Required Supplementary Information

~ Required Supplementary Information ~

The primary focus of the Authority's financial statement (summarized fund-type information) has been
discarded. The new and clearly preferable focus is on the consolidated business type basis. This
consolidates all programs into a combined statement of Net Position. This method is easier for the end user
to analyze and to understand.

Authority-Wide Financial Statements

The Authority-wide financial statements (see Tables 1 thru 5) are designed to be corporate-like in that all
business type activities are consolidated into columns which add to a total for the entire Authority.

These Statements include a Statement of Net Position, which is similar to a Balance Sheet. The Statement
of Net Position reports all financial and capital resources for the Authority. The statement is presented in the
format where assets, minus liabilities, equal “Net Position,” formerly known as equity. Assets and liabilities
are presented in order of liquidity, and are classified as “Current” (convertible into cash within one year), and
“Non-current.”




SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Management Discussion and Analysis

September 30, 2022

The focus of the Statement of Net Position (the “Unrestricted Net Position”) is designed to represent the net
available liquid (non-capital) assets, net of liabilities, for the entire Authority. Net Position (formerly equity) is
reported in three broad categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets: This component of Net Position consists of all Capital Assets, reduced by
the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Position: This component of Net Position consists of restricted assets, when constraints are
placed on the asset by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, laws, regulations, etc.

Unrestricted Net Position: Consists of Net Position that do not meet the definition of “Net Position Invested in
Capital Assets,” “Net of Related Debt,” or “Restricted Net Position”.

The Authority-wide financial statements also include a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Fund Net Position (similar to an Income Statement). This Statement includes Operating Revenues, such as
rental income, Operating Expenses, such as administrative, utilities, and maintenance, and depreciation, and
Non-Operating Revenue and Expenses, such as grant revenue, investment income and interest expense.

The focus of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position is the “Change in Net
Position,” which is similar to Net Income or Loss.

Finally, a Statement of Cash Flows is included, which discloses net cash provided by, or used for operating
activities, non-capital financing activities, and from capital and related financing activities.

Consolidated Financial Statements

Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the consolidated Financial Statements
presentation more familiar. The focus is now on a consolidated balance rather than the individual fund types
or programs. The Authority consists of exclusively Enterprise Funds. Enterprise funds utilize the full accrual
basis of accounting. The Enterprise method of accounting is similar to accounting utilized by the private
sector accounting.

Many of the programs maintained by the Authority are required by the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Others are segregated to enhance accountability and control.



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Management Discussion and Analysis

September 30, 2022

The Authority’s Programs

Public Housing Program — Under the Conventional Public Housing Program, the Authority rents units that it
owns to low-income households. The Conventional Public Housing Program is operated under an Annual
Contributions Contract (ACC) with HUD, and HUD provides Operating Subsidy and Capital Grant funding to
enable the PHA to provide the housing at a rent that is based upon 30% of household income after
deductions. The Conventional Public Housing Program also includes the Capital Fund Program, which is the
primary funding source for physical and management improvements to the Authority’s properties.

Housing Choice Voucher — The objective of this program is to provide housing for eligible low-income
families through housing assistance payments to private landlords.

AUTHORITY-WIDE STATEMENT
Statement of Net Position

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position compared to the prior year. The
Authority is engaged only in Business-Type Activities.

Sanford Housing Authority
Combined Statement of Net Position
TABLE I
Account Descriptions 2022 2021 Total Change % Change

Current Assets $ 1,249,021 2,465,551 (1,216,530) -49.34%
Capital Assets 6,889,602 5,438,486 1,451,116 26.68%
Notes and Loan Recievable- Non Current 2,625,373 3,634,511 (1,009,138) -27.77%

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows $ 10,763,996 11,538,548 (774,552) -6.71%
Current Liabilities $ 1,237,151 649,921 587,230 90.35%
Noncurrent Liabilities 132,788 256,684 (123,896) -48.27%

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows S 1,369,939 906,605 463,334 51.11%
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 6,135,555 5,438,486 697,069 12.82%
Restricted Net Position 82,161 368,008 (285,847) -77.67%
Unrestricted Net Position 3,176,341 4,825,449 (1,649,108) -34.18%

Total Net Position $ 9,394,057 10,631,943 (1,237,886) -11.64%

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows

& Net Position $ 10,763,996 11,538,548 (774,552) -6.71%




SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Management Discussion and Analysis

September 30, 2022

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Net Position

e Current Assets decreased by $1,216,530 or 49.34% primarily due to a reduction in unrestricted
cash.

e Capital Assets increased by $1,451,116 or 26.68% primarily due to renovations to the 226 Linden
Street Property.

e Notes and Loan Receivable — Non Current decreased by $1,009,138 or 27.77% due to an increase
in the allowance for uncollectable notes.

e Current Liabilities increased by $587,230 or 90.35% primarily due to $754K in construction loans
payable for 226 Linden maturing in the next fiscal year

e Restricted Net Position - decreased by $285,847 or 77.67% due a decrease in Housing Choice
Voucher funds on-hand.

Table Il presents details on the change in Net Position

Sanford Housing Authority
Change in Net Position
Table II

Net Position 09/30/21 10,631,943

Net Loss (1,237,886)

Net Position 09/30/22 9,394,057

While the results of operations are a significant measure of the Authority’s activities, the analysis of the
changes in Net Position provides a clearer change in financial well-being.

The following schedule compares the combined revenues and expenses for the current and previous fiscal
year. The Authority is engaged only in Business-Type Activities.



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Management Discussion and Analysis

September 30, 2022

Sanford Housing Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

TABLE III
Account Description 2022 2021 Total Change % Change

Tenant Revenue 509,045 458,472 50,573 11.03%
Operating Subsidies 5,433,764 5,686,474 (252,710) -4.44%
Capital Grants 445,655 1,554,852 (1,109,197) -71.34%
Other Government Grants 534,783 84,990 449,793 529.23%
Interest Income 52 1,689 (1,637) -96.92%
Other Income 199,569 1,051,147 (851,578) -81.01%

Total Revenue 7,122,868 8,837,624 (1,714,756) -19.40%
Administration 1,479,279 1,594,323 (115,044) -71.22%
Tenant Services 183,134 231,069 (47,935) -20.74%
Maintenance 793,225 720,274 72,951 10.13%
Utilities 457,993 478,583 (20,590) -4.30%
Insurance 117,917 114,735 3,182 2.77%
General Expense 1,037,308 886,994 150,314 16.95%
Protective Services 125,392 86,663 38,729 44.69%
Housing Assistance Payments 3,780,140 3,990,879 (210,739) -5.28%
Depreciation 386,366 409,928 (23,562) -5.75%

Total Expenses 8,360,754 8,513,448 (152,694) -1.79%
Change in Net Position (1,237,886) 324,176 (1,562,062) 481.86%
Beginning Net Position 10,631,943 10,307,767 324,176 3.14%
Ending Net Position 9,394,057 10,631,943 (1,237,886) -11.64%




SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Management Discussion and Analysis

September 30, 2022

MAJOR FACTORS AFFECTING THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET
POSITION

Total Revenue decreased by $1,714,756 or 19.40% during fiscal year 2022.

Tenant Revenue increased by $50,573 or 11.03%. Rent is based on resident incomes and can
fluctuate.

Operating Subsidies decreased $252,710 or 4.44% primarily due to a decrease in Housing
Assistance Payments subsidy. HUD decreased funding due to Authority’s prior year Restricted Cash
on hand for Housing Assistance payments.

Capital Grants decreased by $1,109,197 or 71.34%. In the prior year, Capital Fund were used for
the renovation of the Matthews Court and Garden Gilmore properties under the Rental Assistance
Demonstration (RAD) Program.

Other GoVernment Grants increased by $449,793 or 529.23% primarily due to increase funding
through Community Development Block Grant program for renovations at 226 Linden Street.

Total Expenses decreased by $152,694 or 1.79% during fiscal year 2022.

Tenant Service Expenses decreased by $47,935 or 20.74% due to turnover in supportive services
staff.

Maintenance Expenses increased by $72,951 or 10.13% primarily due to increased maintenance
needs at Stewart Manor.

Housing Assistance Payments decreased by $210,739 or 5.28%. In the prior year, there was
increase Housing Assistance Payments expense related to the RAD Conversion.

CAPITAL ASSETS

As of year end, the Authority had $6.9 million invested in a variety of capital assets as reflected in the
following schedule, which represents a net increase (addition, deductions and depreciation) of $1.5 million
from the prior fiscal year.



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Management Discussion and Analysis

September 30, 2022

The following reconciliation summarizes the change in Capital Assets.

Sanford Housing Authority
Combined Statement of Capital Assets

TABLE IV
Account Descriptions 2022 2021 Total Change % Change

Land 882,693 882,693 - 0.00%
Buildings & improvements 15,222,898 15,405,438 (182,540) -1.18%
Equipment 1,288,969 660,774 628,195 95.07%
Construction in progress 1,484,011 92,183 1,391,828 1509.85%
18,878,571 17,041,088 1,837,483 10.78%

Accumulated Depreciation (11,988,969) (11,602,602) (386,367) 3.33%
Total Capital Assets 6,889,602 5,438,486 1,451,116 26.68%

e Net (additions minus disposals) accumulated depreciation for the fiscal year was -$386,367 which
was a 3.33% increase.

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

As of year-end 2022, the Authority had $132,788 in long-term liabilities as reflected in the following schedule,
which represents a net decrease of $123,896 from the end of the prior fiscal year.

The following reconciliation summarizes the change in Long-Term Liabilities.

10



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Management Discussion and Analysis

September 30, 2022

Sanford Housing Authority
Combined Statement of Long-Term Liabilities

TABLEV
Account Descriptions 2022 2021 Total Change % Change
FSS Escrows 125,857 207,509 (81,652) -39.35%
Accrued Compensated Absences 9,901 70,249 (60,348) -85.91%
135,758 277,758 (142,000) -51.12%
Current Portion (2,970) (21,074) 18,104 -85.91%
Net Long-Term Liabilities 132,788 256,684 (123,896) -48.27%

e FSS escrows decreased due to resident withdrawals and forfeitures exceeding deposits.
e Accrued compensated absences decreased due to staff turnover.

ECONOMIC FACTORS
Significant economic factors affecting the Authority are as follows:
e Federal funding of the Department of Housing and Urban Development
e Local labor supply and demand, which can affect salary and wage rates
e Local inflationary, recessionary and employment trends, which can affect resident incomes and
therefore the amount of rental income
e Inflationary pressure on utility rates, supplies, and other costs

FINANCIAL CONTACT

The individual to be contacted regarding this report is Marcus Goodson, Chief Executive Officer, Sanford
Housing Authority, 919-776-7655. Specific requests may be submitted to Sanford Housing Authority, P.O.
Box 636, Sanford, NC 27331.

11



Sanford Housing Authority
Sanford, North Carolina

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund Type
September 30, 2022

Discrete
Primary Component
Government Unit

Sept 30, 2022 Dec 31, 2021

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted $ 70,642 $ 252,288
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 239,809 16,228,680
Accounts receivable - HUD 143,596 -
Accounts receivable - tenants, net of an allowance 34,177 31,369
Accounts receivable - other 682,062 498,848
Prepaid expenses and other assets 78,735 28,113

Total Current Assets 1,249,021 17,039,298

Noncurrent Assets:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 6,889,602 18,046,635
Notes and loans receivable, non-current 2,625,373 -
Other assets - 276,313

Total Noncurrent Assets 9,514,975 18,322,948

Deferred Outflows of Resources - -

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 10,763,996 $ 35,362,246

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 328,189 $ 60,906
Accrued compensated absences - current portion 2,970 -
Tenant security deposits 31,791 14,121
Other current liabilities 82,824 1,564,306
Accrued interest payable - 35,252
Unearned revenue 37,330 14,895
Current portion of long term debt 754,047 82,830

Total Current Liabilities 1,237,151 1,772,310

Long-Term Liabilities:

Other non-current liabilities 125,857 816,808
Accrued compensated absences - noncurrent 6,931 -
Long term debt - 27,606,514
Total Long-Term Liabilities 132,788 28,423,322
Total Liabilities 1,369,939 30,195,632
Deferred Inflows of Resources - -
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 6,135,555 (9,642,709)
Restricted net position 82,161 16,214,559
Unrestricted net position 3,176,341 (1,405,236)
Total net position 9,394,057 5,166,614
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position $ 10,763,996 $ 35,362,246

See auditor’'s report.
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

12



Sanford Housing Authority
Sanford, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position - Proprietary Fund Type

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

For the period ended:

Discrete
Primary Component
Government Unit
Sept 30, 2022 Dec 31, 2021
Operating Revenues
Net tenant rental revenue $ 509,045 $ 926,528
HUD operating grants 5,433,764 -
Other government grants 534,783 -
Other revenue 199,569 825,748
Total Operating Revenue 6,677,161 1,752,276
Operating Expenses
Administrative 1,479,279 482,180
Tenant services 183,134 -
Utilities 457,993 333,063
Ordinary maintenance and operations 793,225 316,836
Protective services 125,392 45,228
General 1,155,225 120,070
Housing assistance payments 3,780,140 -
Depreciation 386,366 152,908
Total Operating Expense 8,360,754 1,450,285
Operating Income (Loss) (1,683,593) 301,991
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
Investment income 52 17,316
Interest expense - (244,510)
Total Non-Operating Income (Expenses) 52 (227,194)
Operating Income (Loss) before Capital Grants (1,683,541) 74,797
HUD Capital Grants 445 655 -
Change in Net Position $ (1,237,886) $ 74,797
Net Position - Beginning of Year 10,631,943 -
Contributed Capital - 5,091,817
Net Position - Ending of year $ 9,394,057 $ 5,166,614

See auditor's report.
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

13



Sanford Housing Authority
Sanford, North Carolina

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund Type
For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Cash flows used by operating activities:

Cash received from tenants and others $ 824,271
Cash paid for goods and services (2,355,311)
Cash paid to employees for services (1,138,941)
Housing assistance payments (3,780,140)
HUD operating grants received 5,272,073
Other government grants received 563,603
Other revenues 199,569
Net cash used by operating activities (414,876)
Cash flows used by capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from capital grants 462,158
Acquisition of capital assets (net) (1,083,435)
Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities (621,277)
Cash flows provided by investing activities:
Interest earned 52
Net cash flows provided by investing activities 52
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,036,101)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,346,552
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 310,451

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash used by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) $ (1,683,593)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation 386,366
Changes in:
Accounts receivable HUD (80,102)
Other government grants 28,820
Tenant accounts receivable (3,218)
Accounts receivable other 1,232,044
Prepaid expenses (44,731)
Inventory 40,251
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (162,662)
Accrued compensated absences (60,348)
Tenant security deposits 2,705
Unearned revenue 11,244
Other liabilities (81,652)
Total adjustments 1,268,717
Net cash used by operating activities $ (414,876)

Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activity
Fixed assets purchased with notes payable $ 754,047

See auditor’s report.
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

14



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Reporting Entity

The Sanford Housing Authority (“Authority”) is a public body created under the General Statutes of
North Carolina. The Authority was created for the purpose of providing safe and sanitary housing for
the low-income citizens of Sanford, North Carolina.

The Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority is appointed by the Mayor of the City of
Sanford but the Authority designates its own management. The City of Sanford provides no financial
support to the Authority and is not responsible for the debts or entitled to the surpluses of the
Authority. The Authority has the power to approve its own budget and maintains its own accounting
system. Although the Board is appointed by the City of Sanford, no other criteria established by
Section 2100 and 2600 of the Codification of Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board, and Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 39 for inclusion of the Authority in the City of Sanford's financial statements are met. Therefore,
a separate financial report is prepared for the Authority. All of the operations of the Authority are
included in the audited financial statements and there are no operations or activities which have
been excluded.

In determining how to define the reporting entity, management has considered all potential
component units. The decision to include a component unit in the reporting entity was made by
applying the criteria set forth in Section 2100 and 2600 of the Codification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards and Statement No. 14 (amended), of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. These criteria include manifestation of oversight
responsibility including financial accountability, appointment of a voting majority, imposition of will,
financial benefit to or burden on a primary organization, financial accountability as a result of fiscal
dependency, potential for dual inclusion, and organizations included in the reporting entity although
the primary organization is not financially accountable.

Based upon the application of these criteria, the reporting entity has the following component units:

Blended:
Some component units, despite being legally separate from the primary government, are so
integrated with the primary government that they are in substance part of the primary government.

The Authority’s operations include a blended component unit, which is included in the basic financial
statements and consists of a legally separate entity for which the Authority is financially accountable
and that has the same governing board as the Authority as follows:

The Central Carolina Strategic Developers (“CCSD") is a not-for-profit organization that was
incorporated during a prior year and was established for the purpose of providing affordable housing
to low-income purposes. The Authority appoints directors to CCSD and as such the commissioners
of CCSD and directors of the Authority are the same. When a commissioner is appointed to the
Authority, that Commissioner is automatically appointed to the board of CCSD.

15



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Reporting Entity (Continued)

Effective October 1, 2020, CCSD is the co-manager for Matthews Garden Gilmore, LLC, and
responsible for the rehabilitation. The day-to-day operations and management of 176 affordable
housing units are performed by the Sanford Housing Authority.

Discrete:

The Authority has relationships with for-profit, limited liability companies listed below which were
formed to develop and operate mixed-finance housing properties. CCSD is a 70% member and
manager of CCSD — HDP, LLC (a blended component unit of the Authority by virtue of CCSD’s
percentage ownership) who is the .009% managing member of Matthews Garden Gilmore, LLC who
is the 100% member of the discrete component units listed below. The managing member has
certain rights and responsibilities which enable it to impose its will on the limited partnerships. The
Authority has also entered into agreements with the partnerships to provide loans. Neither the
Authority nor its blended component unit is served exclusively or almost exclusively by the limited
partnerships. Therefore, the limited liability companies are to be presented as discretely presented
component units.

The for-profit, limited liability companies considered discrete component units were created as a
result of the Sanford Housing Authority converting one hundred and seventy-six (176) of the Sanford
Housing Authority's public housing units to HUD's Rental Assistance Demonstration Program
("RAD"), which is essentially Section 8 housing (project-based vouchers). This conversion occurred
in October 2020. Converting via the RAD program allowed the Authority to embark upon major
renovations by using various financial resources. The limited partnerships created as a result of
these conversions and considered discrete component units are as follows:

e Matthews Court, LLC
e Garden Gilmore, LLC

The activity for the discrete component units is presented jointly in these financial statements as
Matthews Garden Gilmore, LLC (who is the 100% member of Matthews Court LLC and Garden
Gilmore LLC).

Matthews Garden Gilmore, LLC (the "Company") was organized on October 1, 2020 as a North
Carolina limited liability company for the purpose of acquiring, rehabilitating, and operating a rental
housing project.

The Project has received a preliminary reservation of $1,106,474 in low-income housing tax credits
pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 42 (Section 42), which regulates the use of the Project
as to occupant eligibility and unit gross rent, among other requirements. To qualify for the tax credits,
each building of the project must meet the provisions of these regulations during each of 15
consecutive years in order to remain qualified to receive the credits.

16



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Reporting Entity (Continued)

Discrete (continued):
The Company shall remain in effect until December 31, 2120, unless sooner dissolved in
accordance with the provisions of the Operating Agreement.

On October 2, 2020, the Company acquired assets comprising the rental property of the Projectina
transaction with Sanford Housing Authority for a purchase price of $6,940,000. Both the selling and
purchasing entity are consolidated by the parent entity and, as a result, this is considered to be a
transaction between entities under common control. In accordance with the accounting guidance for
entities under common control, the acquired assets are recorded at the respective net book value at
the date of acquisition as reflected on the seller's books with the sales price in excess of the net
book value of the acquired assets reflected as net assets transferred on the balance sheet and
statement of operations. The allocation of the purchase price is as follows:

Matthews Court Garden Gilmore Total
Buildings and Improvements $ 279,103 $ 2,603,593 $ 2,882,696
Net assets transferred 1,070,897 2,986,407 4,057,304

$ 1,350,000 $ 5,590,000 $ 6,940,000

The discrete component units are for-profit entities and as such are governed by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) standards, which differ from GASB. The most significant
difference is the Discrete Component Unit shows the acquired assets recorded at the respective net
book value at date of acquisition (as noted above) while the Authority shows the sales price as the
gross value. Separately issued financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 for
Matthews Garden Gilmore, LLC (which includes the combined activity of Matthews Court LLC and
Garden Gilmore LLC) can be obtained by contacting the Authority.

Description of a Public Housing Authority

Funding for public housing authorities is received from the United States Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) and from participants in public housing programs. Under the Low Rent
Housing Program, low income tenants pay monthly rents which are determined by their need for
assistance. HUD pays operating subsidies to the housing authority to enable the authority to
maintain the low-income character of the neighborhood while providing adequate services and
maintaining adequate reserves.

The Authority’s capital funds are received from the Federal Government through a formula driven
computation. These funds are used to upgrade the facilities at various developments to give the
residents a decent and safe living environment. Each year's grant funds must be entirely obligated
within two years of inception of the grant and entirely expended within four years.

17



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Description of a Public Housing Authority

The Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program provides rental supplements to the owners of
existing private housing who rent to qualified individuals. The Authority processes all applicants for
the Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program, places approved applicants in housing, and
pays the owners of the private housing monthly rental supplements. Under the conditions of an
annual contributions contract, HUD reimburses the Authority for the rental supplements and the
administrative costs of managing the program up to a per unit limit established in the annual
contributions contract.

Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the Authority are organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is anindependent
fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording its assets, liabilities, net
position, revenues and expenses.

The Authority accounts for its operation in one fund type, the enterprise fund that reflects the
business type activities of the Authority. An enterprise fund is used to account for operations (a) that
are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the
governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to
the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or
(b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenue earned, expenses
incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management
control, accountability, or other purposes.

The Sanford Housing Authority maintains one enterprise fund which includes the following programs:

the Public Housing Program, Capital Fund Program, Section 8 — Housing Choice Voucher Program,
Resident Opportunities Supportive Services Program (ROSS), Family Self Sufficiency Program
(FSS) Business Activities (Building Fund), the Central Office Cost Center (COCC), and a blended
component unit.

Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. The enterprise fund is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus.
With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of this fund
are included on the statement of net position. Enterprise fund type equity (i.e., total net position) is
segregated into net investment in capital assets, and restricted and unrestricted net position
components. Operating activities for this fund present increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases
(e.g., expenses) in total net position.

18



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Basis of Accounting (Continued)

The financial statements for the Authority have been presented on the accrual basis. Under this
basis, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. Operating
income reported includes rental income, other tenant charges, operating grants and other revenue
for the continuing operations of the fund. Operating expenses are the costs of providing goods and
services. Other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating in the financial statements.

As permitted, the Sanford Housing Authority has elected to apply only the applicable FASB
Statements and Interpretations issued before November 30, 1989 in its accounting and reporting
practices for its operations.

Budgetary Data

The Authority maintains budgetary controls over its fund, as required by North Carolina General
Statute 159-42(c-d) and the terms of the Authority’s annual contributions contract with HUD. An
annual budget is adopted for the Low-rent Housing Program. Capital Fund Program budgets are for
the length of the grants. The Authority determined that all revenues and expenses were in
accordance with the program budgets. The budgets were prepared on the modified accrual basis of
accounting.

Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the Authority are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as
required by HUD regulations. The Authority may designate as an official depository any bank or
savings and loan association whose principal office is located in North Carolina.

Also, the Authority may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and Super NOW accounts,
money accounts and certificates of deposit. Section 401(e) of the annual contribution contract
authorizes the Authority to invest in the following types of securities:

1. Obligations of the Federal Government which are backed by the full faith and credit of the
Federal Government.

2. Obligations of any agency or instrumentality of the Federal Government if the payment of
interest and principal on such obligations is fully guaranteed by the Federal Government.

3. Obligations of the Federal Intermediate Credit Banks, the Federal Home Loan Banks, the
Federal National Mortgage Association, the Banks for Cooperatives, and the Federal Land
Banks which mature no later than 18 months after the date of purchase.

19



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Deposits and Investments (Continued)

As required by the annual contributions contract, the Authority prepares cash forecasts for each
program to determine the amount of funds available for investment and to maximize investment
earnings. During the fiscal year and at year-end, all cash was held in the form of interest bearing
accounts. The deposits and the above described investments with an original maturity of ninety
days or less are considered cash and cash equivalents for the Statement of Cash Flows.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of the Authority’s financial instruments at September 30, 2022, including cash,
investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable and debt closely approximates fair value.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.
The costs of inventories are recorded as expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost at the date of acquisition. Assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the following years:

Dwelling structures 40 years
Dwelling structures improvements 27.5 years
Leasehold improvements 15 years
Furniture and equipment 5-7 years

The Authority capitalizes purchases with an initial cost that exceeds $5,000 and a useful life greater
than one year. Maintenance and repairs expenditures are charged to operations when incurred.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenues consist of tenant rents paid in advance (prepaid rents).

Vacation and Sick Leave Compensation

The Sanford Housing Authority allows its full time employees to accumulate vacation leave, and
such leave is fully vested when earned. Full-time employees with less than ten years of service earn
1 day per month, and full-time employees with greater than ten years of service earn 1.5 days per
month. The maximum number of days of annual leave that may be paid for upon separation or
carried forward to the next calendar year is 30 days. Sick leave is earned by employees but will not
be paid upon termination.

20



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Operating Revenues

Subsidies received from the Department of Housing and Urban Development or other grantor
agencies for operating purposes, are recorded as operating revenues. Those that are received for
capital purposes are recorded as a capital contribution.

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets represents funds received for development and modernization of
the Authority’s dwelling units. Capital assets purchased through operations and grant programs are
included in this amount.

Restricted Net Position represents the difference between the assets and liabilities that are
constrained in use by creditors or by grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of governments.

The Authority: The Authority's restricted net position is comprised of restricted insurance
proceeds for the Public Housing Program, cash held for debt service and restricted for
current liabilities, and excess Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher housing assistance
payments restricted for payments of housing assistance to landlords on behalf of tenants. As
of September 30, 2022, the Authority’s restricted net position was comprised of the following:

Cash restricted from proceeds of Section 32 sale $ 45,800
Cash restricted for FSS escrow forfeitures 36,361
Total Restricted Net Position $ 82,161

The Discrete Component Unit: The statement of net position of the Discrete Component
Unit reports $16,214,559 of restricted net position which consists of the following:

o Construction cash of $21,560
o Replacement reserves of $115,046;
o Other reserves of $391,167;

° Bond reserves of $15,686,786.

Unrestricted Net Position represents the difference between the Authority’s assets and liabilities that
are not classified as net investment in capital assets or as restricted net position.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ
from those estimates.

21



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 2: Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

The Authority believes it has met its responsibilities regarding stewardship, compliance and
accountability for its fund.

NOTE 3: Deposits and Investments

The Authority’s deposits include deposits with financial institutions. The carrying amount of the
Authority’s deposits for cash and investments was $310,451. All deposits and certificates of deposit
are secured by the Authority’s financial institutions with F.D.I.C. coverage and securities pledged in
the entity’s name.

The Authority’s cash and investments consist of checking, money market and certificates of
deposits. The Authority’s checking and money market accounts are short-term highly liquid
investments that are considered cash and cash equivalents. The Authority considers all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash and cash
equivalents.

The Authority’s investments (if any) consist of certificates of deposits from FDIC insured state banks
with an original maturity in excess of ninety days. Investments (if any) are stated at cost, which
approximates fair value. The Authority did not have any investments as of September 30, 2022.

Interest rate risk- The Sanford Housing Authority has no specific policy regarding interest rate risk.

Credit risk- The Authority has no policy regarding credit risk. However, the Authority did not have any
investments as of September 30, 2022.

Custodial credit risk - For an investment, the custodial risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Authority has no policy on custodial
credit risk. However, the Authority had no investments as of September 30, 2022.

Concentration of credit risk- The Authority places no limit on the amount that the Authority may
invest in any one issuer.

22



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 3: Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Restricted cash and cash equivalents for the Authority

As of September 30, 2022, restricted cash and cash equivalents for the Authority consist of:

Cash restricted from proceeds of Section 32 sale $ 45,800
Cash restricted for FSS program 125,857
Cash restricted for FSS escrow forfeitures 36,361
Cash restricted for security deposits 31,791

Total Restricted Cash $ 239,809

Restricted cash and cash equivalents for the Discrete Component Unit

As of December 31, 2021, restricted cash for Matthews Garden Gilmore, LLC consists of:

Construction cash $ 21,560
Tenant security deposit cash 14,121
Replacement reserves 115,046
Other reserves 391,167
Bond reserves 15,686,786

Total Restricted Cash $ 16,228,680

Replacement reserves - In accordance with the operating agreement, the Company is required to
establish and maintain a replacement reserve in the initial amount of $115,000 deposited no later
than Initial Closing, as defined. Thereafter, the Company shall deposit $61,600 annually
commencing at Final Closing, as defined, increasing by 4% every five years. As of December 31,
2021, the balance held in the replacement reserve was $115,046. Activity for the year ended
December 31, 2021 was as follows:

Balance at October 1, 2020 $ -
Other deposits -
Initial funding deposit 115,000
Interest income 46

Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 115,046

23



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 3: Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Restricted cash and cash equivalents for the Discrete Component Unit (Continued)

Operating reserves - In accordance with the operating agreement, the Company is required to
establish and maintain an operating reserve in the initial amount of $391,010 deposited no later than
the date of the first capital contribution. Thereafter, the Company shall deposit an additional
$316,658 no later than the date of the final capital contribution. Withdrawals from the operating
reserve are required to be approved by the Special member and in no event shall the balance of the
operating reserve fall below $353,834. As of December 31, 2021, the balance held in the operating
reserve was $391,167. Activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 was as follows:

Balance at October 1, 2020 $ -
Initial funding deposit 391,010
Interest income 157

Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 391,167

Bond reserves - In connection with the Bonds, reserves were required to be deposited with U.S.
Bank, N.A. (the “Trustee”) in accordance with the terms of the trust indenture. Amounts in these
funds are restricted as to use. As of December 31, 2021, the Trustee has invested the money in
short-term U.S. treasury obligations. The reserves are carried at cost which approximates market
value. At December 31, 2021, the balance in these funds is $15,686,786.

NOTE 4: Accounts Receivable - Other

Authority: Accounts Receivable — Other of $682,062 consists of the following:

Developer fees receivable $ 652,244
Miscellaneous 29,818
Total accounts receivable - other $ 682,062

CCSD (the blended component unit) served as co-developer of the for-profit limited liability
companies discussed in Note 1. According to the developer agreement, CCSD was to earn 70% (its
share) of the developer fees based on services provided and progress on the construction of the
development. The agreement states that CCSD was entitled to receive 80% of its 70% share of the
developer fee once the construction of the developments exceeded 50% completion.

24



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 4: Accounts Receivable — Other (continued)

Authority (continued):

As of September 30, 2022, the developments were at least 50% completed and CCSD has earned
$827,244 (which represents its 70% share of 80% of the total developer fee of $1,477,221). As of
September 30, 2022, CCSD had received $175,000 of the developer fee which resulted in amount
receivable of $652,244 ($827,244 less $175,000 received) as of September 30, 2022.

Discrete Component Units: Accounts Receivable — Other of $498,848 consists of RAD
rehabilitation payments. During 2021, in connection with the ongoing rehabilitation of the Project, the
Company received funds from SHA to offset vacancies during development. For the period from
October 1, 2020 (inception) through December 31, 2021, $498,848 was recognized and included in
other revenue on the statement of operations. As of December 31, 2021, $498,848 remains
receivable from SHA.

NOTE 5: Capital Assets

Authority: The changes in capital assets for the year ended September 30, 2022 for the Authority
were as follows:

Beginning
Balance Additions Disposals Transfers Ending Balance

Nondepreciable capital assets:

Land and site improvements $ 882693 % - $ - 3 - % 882,693
Construction in progress 92,183 1,391,828 - - 1,484,011
974,876 1,391,828 - - 2,366,704
Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings and improvements 15,405,437 345,696 - - 15,751,133
Furniture, equipment, vehicles 660,774 99,960 - - 760,734
16,066,211 445 656 - - 16,511,867
Accumulated Depreciation: (11,602,602) (386,366) (1) (11,988,969)
(11,602,602) (386,366) (1) - (11,988,969)
Total Capital Assets, net $ 5438485 § 1451118 $ (1) $ - $ 6,889,602

Depreciation expense was $386,366 for the year ended September 30, 2022.

25



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 5: Capital Assets (continued)

Authority (Continued):

A summary of capital assets at September 30, 2022 is as follows:

Public Housing HCV Bus Activities coccC Total
Nondepreciable capital assets:
Land and site improvements $ 431,083 $ - $ 361065 $ 90,545 $ 882,693
Construction in progress - - - 1,484,011 1,484,011
431,083 - 361,065 1,574,556 2,366,704
Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings and improvements 14,806,276 - 366,800 578,057 15,751,133
Furniture, equipment, vehicles 597,378 22,355 7,003 133,998 760,734
15,403,654 22,355 373,803 712,055 16,511,867
Accumulated Depreciation: (11,217,552) (22,355) (213,527) (535,535) (11,988,969)
(11,217,552) (22,355) (213,527) (535,535) (11,988,969)
Total Capital Assets, net $ 4617185 $ - $ 521341 $ 1751076 $ 6,889,602

Discrete Component Units: The changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2021
for the Discrete Component Units were as follows:

Beginning
Balance Additions Disposals Transfers Ending Balance
Buildings $ -$ 10,997,022 §$ - 98 - $ 10,997,022
Fumishings - 111,959 - - 111,959
Miscellaneous fixed assets - 7,090,562 - - 7,090,562
- 18,199,543 - - 18,199,543
Accumulated Depreciation: - (152,908) - (152,908)
- (152,908) - - (152,908)
Total Capital Assets, net $ - $ 18,046,635 $ - 3% - $ 18,046,635

26



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 6: Notes and Loans Receivable, Non-current

As discussed in Note 1, the Authority has relationships with certain for-profit limited liability
companies that are considered discrete component units. As of September 30, 2022, these related
entities are indebted to the Authority in the form of promissory notes totaling $2,625,373 as a result
of the RAD conversion and additional financing needed. See below for a summary:

Garden Matthews

Gilmore, LLC Court, LLC Subtotal
Purchase Money Promissory Note $5590,000 $1,350,000 $6,940,000
2nd Promissory Note - 527,067 527,067
CFP Promissory Note 47,523 989,654 1,037,177
Subtotal 47,523 1,516,721 1,564,244
Total All 5,637,523 2,866,721 8,504,244
Less Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts (3,922,637)  (1,956,234)  (5,878,871)
Total After Allowance $1,714886 § 910,487 $2,625373

Garden Gilmore, LLC

Purchase Money Promissory Note - $5,590,000 note payable to the Authority compounded annually
at an interest rate of 5.6%. During the construction term, the interest shall accrue but not be payable.
The construction term shall end on July 1, 2022. The permanent term shall end on July 1, 2062. No
interest has been accrued as the Authority does not believe the interest will ultimately be collectible.

CFP Promissory Note- $319,699 capital fund advance compounded annually at an interest rate of
5.6%. At closing $272,176 was applied to this loan leaving a balance of $47,523. During the
construction term, the loan shall bear no interest. The construction term shall end on July 1, 2022.
The permanent term shall end on July 1, 2062. During the permanent term, to the extent surplus
cash is available, the Buyer shall make interest payments to the Authority.

The allowance of $3,922,637 is based on projected cash flows from Garden Gilmore, LLC operations
and the resulting ability to repay the promissory notes. For the year ended September 30, 2022 bad
debt expense in the amount of $659,166 has been recorded as an increase to the allowance.

Matthews Court, LLC

Purchase Money Promissory Note - $1,350,000 note payable to the Authority compounded annually
at an interest rate of 5.6%. During the construction term, the interest shall accrue but not be payable.
The construction term shall end on April 1, 2022. The permanent term shall end on April 1, 2062. No
interest has been accrued as the Authority does not believe the interest will ultimately be collectible.

2" Promissory Note - $527,067 note payable to the Authority compounded annually at an interest
rate of 5.6%. During the construction term, the loan shall bear no interest. The construction term
shall end on April 1, 2022. The permanent term shall end on April 1, 2062.

27



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 6: Notes and Loans Receivable, Non-current (Continued)

CFP Promissory Note - $1,352,189 capital fund advance compounded annually at an interest rate of
5.6%. At closing $362,535 was applied to this loan leaving a balance of $989,654. During the
construction term, the loan shall bear no interest. The construction term shall end on April 1, 2022.
The permanent term shall end on April 1, 2062. During the permanent term, to the extent surplus
cash is available, the Buyer shall make interest payments to the Authority.

The allowance of $1,956,234 is based on projected cash flows from Garden Court, LLC operations
and resulting ability to repay the promissory notes. For the year ended September 30, 2022 bad debt
expense in the amount of $349,972 has been recorded as an increase to the allowance.

NOTE 7: Other Current Liabilities

Authority - Other current liabilities of $82,824 represents amounts due to the for-profit limited liability
companies (related entities as discussed in Note 1) for rehab assistance payments (“RAP") earned
by the partnerships as a result of vacancies (per the RAD Conversion Commitment “RCC"
agreement), but not paid as of September 30, 2022.

Discrete Component Units - Other current liabilites of $1,564,306 consists of
construction/development accounts payable of $1,348,560 and entity accounts payable of $215,746
as of December 31, 2021.

NOTE 8: Other Non-Current Liabilities

Authority - Other non-current liabilities of $125,857 represent FSS escrows for the Public Housing
Program ($20,580) and the HCV Program ($105,277).

Discrete Component Units - The Company has entered into a development agreement with
Central Carolina Strategic Developers, an affiliate of the Managing member, and Horizon
Development Properties, Inc. The agreement provides for development fee in the amount of
$1,477,221, for services in connection with the development of the project and the supervision of
construction. Development fees are recognized as incurred ratably over the course of construction.
For the period from October 1, 2020 (inception) through December 31, 2021, $1,066,808 has been
incurred and capitalized into building. As of December 31, 2021, $816,808 remains payable.

28



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 9: Authority Schedule of Changes in Other Noncurrent Liabilities:

September 30, 2021 September 30, 2022
Long-Term Current Long-Term Current
Portion Portion Additions Payments Portion Portion
FSS Escrows (other non-current) 207,509 - - (81,652) 125,857 -
Accrued Compensated Absences 49,175 21,074 - (60,348) 6,931 2,970

$ 256684 § 21074 § $ (142,0000 $ 132,788 § 2,970

1

NOTE 10: Long-Term Debt

Authority - On February 4, 2022 the Authority signed a construction loan promissory note in the
amount of $900,000 with a financial institution for the purpose of funding construction on a
development. The note carries a variable interest rate of 2.25% above the Secured Overnight
Financing Rate ("SOFR"), with interest payable monthly starting March 4, 2022. The loan matures
on May 4, 2023. The note is secured by real property. As of September 30, 2022, the unpaid
principal balance was $754,047. See also Note 19.

Discrete Component Units - Mortgages payable with Prudential Huntoon Paige Associates, LLC
("Prudential") and Sanford Housing Authority (‘SHA") at December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Lender Name Prudential (MC) Prudential (GG) SHA-Bonds (MC) SHA-Bonds (GG) SHA-CFP(MC) SHA-CFP (GG) SHA-Reserve (MC) Total
Original amount $ 1989300 $ 9256100 S 4000000 § 11500000 § 1,352,189 § 319699 § 527,067
Maturity date April 1, 2062 July 1,2062  October 1,2023  October 1, 2023 April 1, 2062 July 1, 2062 April 1, 2062
Security/deed of trust First First Second Second Third Third Fourth
Payment terms Interest Only Interest Only At Maturity At Maturity Cash flow Cash flow Cash flow
Interest rate 2.94% 281% 0.30% 0.30% 5.60% 5.60% 5.60%
Imputed interest rate 2.95% 5.80% 0.45% 233% 5.60% 11.65% 5.60%
Monthly Principal and interest $ 7053 S 32,130 S - § - § -8 - 8 -
1213172021 Accrued interest $ 4245 S 19382 S 3000 S 8625 S - 8 -8 - 8 35,252
2021 Interest expense S 6687 S 22,505 S 78550 § 136,188 s 99 § 382 § 99 § 244,510
2021 Interest capttalized S 20,500 § 130,319 § 23895 S 86,055 § 47 S 242§ 47 s 261,105
Principal payments due
in the follow ing years:

2022 S 19559 § 63,271 S - S - S -8 - $ - 8 82,830

2023 27,020 128,595 4,000,000 11,500,000 - - - 15,655,615

2024 27,665 132,178 - - - - - 159,843

2025 28,646 136,060 - - - - - 164,706

2026 29,497 139,864 - - - - - 169,361

Thereafter 1,692,946 8,270,985 - - 1,352,189 319,699 527,067 12,162,886

Outstanding Balance December 31, 2021 1,825,333 8,870,953 4,000,000 11,500,000 1,352,189 319,699 527,067 28,395,241

Less: unamortized debt issuance costs (114,299) (276,372) (53,689) (233,147) (4,525) (19,340) (4,525) (705,897)

Qutstanding Balance December 31, 2021, net $ 1,711,034 S 8,594,581 § 3,946,311 § 11,266,853 § 1,347,664 § 300,359 S 522,542 § 27,689,344

The Company'’s loan listed above is secured by the Property and its improvements in the lien priority
described.

29



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 10: Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Discrete Component Units (Continued)

Prudential - Matthews Court - Under the agreement with the mortgage lender, the Company is
required to make interest only payments monthly up to and including the April 1, 2022 payment.
Thereafter, the Company is required to make monthly payments of principal and interest in the
amount of $7,053 through maturity on April 1, 2062.

Prudential - Garden Gilmore - Under the agreement with the mortgage lender, the Company is
required to make interest only payments monthly up to and including the July 1, 2022 payment.
Thereafter, the Company is required to make monthly payments of principal and interest in the
amount of $32,130 through maturity on July 1, 2062.

NOTE 11: Schedule of Changes in Net Position

Net Investmentin Restricted Unrestricted
Capital Assets Net Position Net Position Total
Balance, beginning of year $ 5,438,486 $ 368,008 4825449 $ 10,631,943
Change in net position - - (1,237,886) (1,237,886)
Changes in restricted net position - (285,847) 285,847 -
Change in netinvestmentin capital assets 697,069 - (697,069) -
Balance, end of year $ 6,135555 § 82,161 $ 3,176,341 $ 9,394,057

NOTE 12: Pension Plan Obligation

The Authority provides a defined contribution pension plan through the MVP Plan Administrators,
Inc. for eligible employees working more than 20 hours per week on a reguiar basis after six months
of service. The Board of Commissioners authorized participation in the plan effective September 1,
1982. The Authority contributes an amount equal to 5.0% of each employee's annual compensation
to the plan and employees are required to contribute 3.0% of their annual compensation as pre-tax
employee contributions. Pension expense totaled $42,269 for the year ended September 30, 2022.
Covered payroll was approximately $845,000 for the year ended September 30, 2022. Employees
contributed $25,036 for the year ended September 30, 2022.

NOTE 13: Related Party Transactions

Authority - There were no related party transactions for the year ended September 30, 2022, other
than the entities discussed in Note 1 (and related activity on Note 5 and Note 6) and the activity with
the discrete component unit described below.

30



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 13: Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Discrete Component Units — The related party transactions for the discrete component units as of
December 31, 2021 are listed below:

Management fee - The Property is managed by SHA, an affiliate of the Managing Member,
pursuant to a management agreement approved by HUD. The current management
agreement provides for a management fee equal to 7% of gross rental revenues of the
project. Such fees charged to operations for the period from October 1, 2020 (inception)
through December 31, 2021 were $117,419. As of December 31, 2021, no amounts remain
payable.

Developer fee — See Note 8 “Other Non-Current Liabilities.”

Ground lease - During October 2020, the Company entered into a ground lease with SHA, an
affiliate of the Managing Member, which requires the Company to restrict 176 residential units
for project-based vouchers (“PBV") via the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development Rental Assistance Demonstration (“RAD”) program (Note 9). The lease begins
on October 1, 2020 and ends on September 20, 2110, unless sooner terminated in
accordance with provisions of the lease agreement. Annual rent payments of $2,000 are due
to SHA, commencing on December 31 of the year in which Stabilization, as defined, is
obtained and shall be payable by December 31stof every year thereafter. For the period from
October 1, 2020 (inception) through December 31, 2021, Stabilization has not been obtained
and no amounts have been charged to operations. See also Note 14 “Ground Lease.”

Asset management fee - Pursuant to the operating agreement, the Company is required to
pay the Investor Member a cumulative fee in the annual amount of $10,000, pro-rated and
commencing upon the first anniversary of the Initial Closing, as defined. The fee is cumulative
and does accrue. For the period from October 1, 2020 (inception) through December 31,
2021, $2,500 of asset management fees were charged to operations. As of December 31,
2021, $2,500 remains payable and is included in accounts payable - entity.

RAD rehabilitation payments - See Note 4 “Accounts Receivable - Other.”

Operating subsidy and capital fund pass-through - The Company receives operating subsidy
and capital fund support from SHA. During the period from October 1, 2020 (inception)
through December 31, 2021, $307,826 was received, recognized and included in other
revenue on the statement of operations.

Due to affiliates - The Company owes amounts to affiliated properties related to development

advances. As of December 31, 2021, the Company owed $213,246, which is included in
accounts payable - entity.

31



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 14: Ground Lease

As discussed in Note 1, the Authority has relationships with certain for-profit limited liability
companies that are considered discrete component units. As part of the RAD conversion, the
Authority retained ownership of the land and signed a 90-year ground lease with Garden Gilmore,
LLC as well as Matthews Court, LLC. Each ground lease is $2,000 per year and is to be paid from
net cash flows and shall increase annually by 3%.

NOTE 15: Risk Management

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Authority
participates in a public entity risk pool, North Carolina Housing Authority's Risk Retention Pool
(NCHARRRP) for all risks of loss, including worker's compensation, general liability, fire and extended
coverage, fidelity bond, automobile, and Director and Officers liability. Through this pool, the
Authority obtains general liability and auto liability coverage of $ 5 million per occurrence, property
coverage up to the total insurance values of the property policy, and workers' compensation
coverage up to statutory limits. Rights and responsibilities of the Authority and the pool are contained
within the pool agreement and the scope of the coverage documents. There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled claims have not exceeded coverage
in any of the past three fiscal years. In addition, the Authority is in compliance with North Carolina
G.S. 159-29 (Fidelity bonds) and the finance officer is bonded in the amount of $50,000.

NOTE 16: Commitments and Contingencies

Examinations: The Authority is subject to possible examinations made by federal and state
authorities who determine compliance with terms, conditions, and laws and regulations governing
grants given to the Authority in the current and prior years.

The Office of Inspector General (OIG) selected the Authority for a procurement, financial operations
and compliance audit based on concerns from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development's (HUD) North Carolina State Office of Public Housing, following a technical assistance
review performed. The technical assistance review identified issues with the Authority’s procurement
practices and financial operations, among other items, to include the housing choice voucher
program operations. The executive director had assessed the Authority’s operation systems and
identified and corrected most of the issues identified in the reports below.

32



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 16: Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Examinations (Continued): On July 19, 2016, the Office of the Inspector General (OIG) of HUD
issued a report on Sanford Housing Authority’s procurement and financial operations practices.
Among other things, the OIG cited the Authority for procurement deficiencies, improper expenses
involving disbursements and travel, as well as undocumented purchases with credit cards. As a
result, the Authority (after providing follow up information) was required to reimburse the appropriate
Operating Fund, Capital Fund, and Housing Choice voucher program $68,169 from non-federal
funds as well requiring the Authority to revise its policies and procedures to ensure that staff
complies with HUD regulations when administering procurement and financial operations (which has
been completed). The terms of the repayment agreement require monthly instaliments to be paid
from the COCC to Public Housing over a period of 17 years commencing on January 15, 2018. As of
September 30, 2022, the related interprogram receivable and payable is as follows:

Balance Due Current  Balance Due
Sept. 30, 2021 Payments Sept. 30, 2022 Due from Due to
Public Housing 3 24495 $ (3,338) $ 21,157 COCC Public Housing
Current $ 3,337
Long Term 17,820
$ 21,157

The abowve interprogram amounts have been eliminated in the financial statements.

Grant Disallowances: Amounts received or receivable from HUD are subject to audit and adjustment
by grantor agencies. If expenses are disallowed as a result of these audits, the claims for
reimbursement to the grantor agency would become a liability of the Authority. See above
“Examinations.”

Administrative Office Flooding: On May 21, 2020, the administrative office building for the Authority
experienced flooding as a result of water entering through the roof. The insurance company has
denied the claim to cover the loss. The Authority engaged an architectural consulting firm to assess
the damage. The consulting firm concluded there are two issues arising within the facility: The first
issue is the extensive damage caused by significant water intrusion into the building. The second
issue was the discovery of extensive mold that had developed and migrated throughout the
basement floor and parts of the first floor. Both contributing issues have caused the building to be
vacated. The mold has since been mitigated. The building has not been repaired to its normal state,
and the Authority feels the building is no longer safe to be occupied. As a result, the Authority is in
the process of moving its operations to a temporary location while repairs are made. The Authority
estimates the cost of renovating the entire building to be in excess of $2,000,000.

33



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 17: Concentrations

For the year ended September 30, 2022, approximately 83% of revenues are received from the
Department of Housing and Urban Development through various grants. The Authority operatesina
heavily regulated environment. The operations of the Authority are subject to the administrative
directives, rules and regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not
limited to HUD. Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act
of congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes may occur with little
notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related costs and the additional administrative burden to
comply with the changes.

NOTE 18: Conduit Type Debt

Debt related to the original acquisition and early modernization of the public housing developments
was funded, guaranteed and serviced by the United States Department of HUD. There is no debt or
pledge of faith and credit on part of the Authority. Accordingly, this debt has not been recorded in
the financial statements of the Authority. HUD no longer provides the Authority with debt service
information since the Authority has no obligation for the debt.

NOTE 19: Subsequent Events

Management for the Authority has evaluated subsequent events after September 30, 2022, and
through June 22, 2023, the date which the financial statements were available to be issued, and no
events were identified that would require recognition or disclosure within these financial statements
except for the following:

Permanent Loan: On March 17, 2023 the Authority signed a permanent loan promissory note in the
amount of $763,852 with North Carolina Housing Finance Agency, a public agency of the State of
North Carolina, for the purpose of paying off the construction loan used for funding construction on a
development. The note bears no interest but calls for principal payments ranging from $938 to
$2,500 to be paid monthly as described in the note. The loan matures on May 1, 2053. The note is
secured by real property.

Stewart Manor: Stewart Manor (AMP 2) is a 99-unit high-rise that over time has been deteriorating.
The plumbing system is old and in need of extensive repair, and there is significant mold damage in
many of the units. In November 2022 the Authority began the process of relocating residents to other
Public Housing units as they became available. The Authority is currently in the process of applying
to receive funding from HUD as well as other sources in order to make the necessary repairs. As of
the date of this report, no official estimate has been performed to determine the cost of renovations.

34



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 20: Segment Information — Central Carolina Strategic Developers (“CCSD")

The following condensed component unit information represents Central Carolina Strategic
Developers (“CCSD"), a blended component unit of the Authority, as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2022:

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Assets
Cash $ -
Accounts receivable - other 652,244
Other receivables 60,078
Total assets $ 712,322
Liabilities
Current liabilities $ 6,416
Total liabilities 6,416
Deferred inflow of resources -
Net position
Net investment in capital assets -
Restricted -
Unrestricted 705,906
Total net position 705,906

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position $ 712,322

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating revenues and (expenses):

Other operating revenues $ 20
Other operating expenses (19,181)
Change in net position (19,161)
Beginning net position 725,067
Ending net position $ 705,906

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash used in:

Operating activities $ (65,098)
Capital and related financing activities -

Net increase in cash (65,098)

Beginning cash 65,098
Ending cash $ -

35



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 21: Financial Statement Information — Discrete Component Units

The combining information for the discrete component units are listed below. The discrete
component unit “Matthews Garden Gilmore, LLC" is composed of Matthews Court LLC and Garden
Gilmore LLC. The combing statement of net position as of December 31, 2021 is as follows:

Matthew s Court Garden Gilmore
LLC LLC Total

ASSETS AND DEFERED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Current Assets:

Cash $ 106,578 $ 145,710 $ 252,288
Restricted Reserves 4,351,367 11,863,192 16,214,559
Tenant Security Deposits 3,352 10,769 14,121

Tenant Receivables 10,177 21,192 31,369
Miscellaneous Receivable 96,152 402,696 498,848
Prepaid Expense 4,973 23,140 28,113
Total Current Assets 4,572,599 12,466,699 17,039,298
Fixed Assets:

Building/Improvements 4,655,891 6,341,131 10,997,022

Furniture/Equipment 56,991 54,968 111,959
Mis cellaneous Fixed Assets 50,218 7,040,344 7,090,562
Accumulated Depreciation (44,485) (108,423) (152,908)
Net Fixed Assets 4,718,615 13,328,020 18,046,635
Other Assets:

Other Assets 68,205 208,108 276,313
Total Other Assets 68,205 208,108 276,313

Deferred Outflows of Resources: “ “ "
Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources $ 9,359419 $ 26,002,827 $ 35,362,246

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ 23813 § 37,093 $ 60,906

Tenant Security Deposits 3,352 10,769 14,121

Accrued Interest Payable 7,245 28,007 35,252

Other Current Liabilities 524,372 1,039,934 1,564,306

Unearned Revenue 2,434 12,461 14,895

Currrent Portion Long Term Debt 19,559 63,271 82,830

Total Current Liabilities 580,775 1,191,535 1,772,310

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Other non-current liabilities 232,657 584,151 816,808

Mortgage Payable 7,607,992 20,098,522 27,606,514

Total Noncurrent Liabilties 7,740,649 20,682,673 28,423,322

Total Liabilities 8,321,424 21,874,208 30,195,632

Deferred Inflows of Resources: - - -

Net Position:

Net Investment In Capital Assets (2,808,936) (6,833,773) (9,642,709)
Restricted Net Position 4,351,367 11,863,192 16,214,559

Unrestricted Net Position (504,436) (900,800) (1,405,236)
Total Net Position 1,037,995 4,128,619 5166614

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position $ 9,359,419 § 26,002,827 $ 35,362,246
36




SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2022

NOTE 21: Financial Statement Information — Discrete Component Units (Continued)

The combining statement of revenue, expenses and changes in fund net position for the period
ended December 31, 2021 is as follows:

Matthew s Court Garden Gilmore Total
Operating Revenues:
Tenant Rental Revenue (Net) $ 261,879 $ 664,649 $ 926,528
Other Operating Revenues 182,354 643,394 825,748
Total Operating Revenues 444,233 1,308,043 1,752,276
Operating Expenses:
Administration 133,577 348,603 482,180
Utilities 64,402 268,661 333,063
Ordinary Maintenance 75,024 241,812 316,836
Protective Services 7,924 37,304 45,228
General Expenses 34,135 85,935 120,070
Depreciation 44,485 108,423 152,908
Total Operating Expenses 359,547 1,090,738 1,450,285
Operating Income 84,686 217,305 301,991
Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses):
Interest income 4,486 12,830 17,316
Interest Expense (85,435) (159,075) (244,510)
Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) (80,949) (146,245) (227,194)
Net Income 3737 71,060 74,797
Contributions (Distributions) from/to Partners: 1,034,258 4,057,559 5,081,817
Change in Net Position 1,037,995 4,128,619 5,166,614
Net Position, Beginning of Year — s =
Net Position, End of Year 3 1037995 ¢ 4,128,619 $ 5,166,614

37



Sanford Housing Authority
Sanford, North Carolina

Combining Schedule of Net Position - Proprietary Fund Type

September 30, 2022

Public HCV ROSS Business Blended Elimi-
Housing &FSS Forf. _&FSS CDBG Aclivities Comp. Unit cocc Subtotal nalions Total
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted $ 54282 $ 16321 § - 8 -8 -8 -8 39 8 70642 $ -8 70,642
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 98,171 141,638 - - - - - 239,809 - 239,809
Accounts receivable - HUD 52,485 71,080 20,031 - - - - 143,596 - 143,596
Accounts receivable - tenants 34,177 - - - - - - 34,177 - 34,177
Accounts receivable - other 7,130 22,688 - - - 652,244 - 682,062 - 682,062
Due fromfto other programs 21,157 - - - 125,702 60,078 - 206,937 (206,937) -
Prepaid expenses 72,241 933 - - - - 5,561 78,735 - 78,735
Total current assets 339,643 252,660 20,031 - 125,702 712,322 5,600 1,455,958 (206.937) 1,249,021
Noncurrent Assels:
Capital Assets
Nondepreciable capital assets 431,083 - - - 361,065 - 90,545 882,693 - 882,693
Depreciable capital assets, net 4,186,102 - - - 160,276 - 176,520 4,522,898 - 4,522,898
Construction in progress - - - - - - 1,484,011 1,484,011 - 1,484,011
Total capital assets 4,617,185 - - - 521,341 - 1,751,076 6,889,602 - 6,889,602
Notes and loans receivable - noncurrent - - - - 2,625,373 - - 2,625,373 - 2,625,373
Total noncurrent assets 4,617,185 - - - 3.146.714 - 1,751,076 9,514,975 - 9,514,975
Deferred Outflows of Resources - - - - - - - - - -
Total assets and deferred outflows of resource: $ 4,956,828 § 252,660 $ 20,031 § - $§ 3272416 $ 712322 $ 1,756,676 $ 10,970,933 § (206.937) $ 10,763,996
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 152,030 § 115862 $ 607 $ -8 -8 6416 $ 53,274 § 328,189 § - 8 328,189
Accrued compensated absences - current portion 2,232 250 - - - - 488 2,970 - 2970
Tenant security deposils 31,791 - - - - - - 31,791 - 31,791
Mortgages and other noles payable - current - - - - - - 754,047 754,047 - 754,047
Other current liabilities - 82,824 - - - - - 82,824 - 82,824
Uneamed revenue 37,330 - - - - - - 37,330 - 37,330
Due to/from other programs - - 19,424 - - - 187,513 206,937 (206.,937) -
Total current liabilities 223,383 198,936 20,031 - - 6416 995,322 1,444,088 (206.937) 1,237,151
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Other non-current liabilities - FSS escrows 20,580 105,277 - - - - - 125,857 - 125,857
Accrued compensated absences - noncurrent 5,208 584 - - - - 1,139 6,931 - 6,931
Total noncurrent liabilities 25,788 105,861 - - - - 1,139 132,788 - 132,788
Total liabilities 249,171 304,797 20,031 - - 6.416 996,461 1,576,876 (206,937) 1,369,939
Deferred Inflows of Resources - - - - - - - - - -
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 4,617,185 - - - 521,341 - 997,029 6,135,555 - 6,135,555
Restricted net position 45,800 36,361 - - - - - 82,161 - 82,161
Unrestricted net position 44,672 (88,498) - - 2,751,075 705,906 (236.814) 3,176,341 - 3.176.341
Total net position 4,707,657 (52,137) - - 3,272,416 705,906 760,215 9,394,057 - 9,394,057
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and net position $ 4956828 § 252660 $ 20.031 § - § 3272416 § 712322 § 1,756,676 $ 10,970,933 § (206.937) § 10,763.996
See auditor’s report.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

38



Sanford Housing Authority

Sanford, North Carolina

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund
Net Position - Proprietary Fund Type

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Operating revenues:
Tenant rental revenue (net)
HUD operating grants
Other government grants
Other revenue
Management and other fees
Total operaling revenues

Operating expenses:
Administration
Tenant services
Utilities
Ordinary maintenance and operations
Prolective services
General expenses
Housing assistance payments
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating loss
Nonoperating revenue and expense:
Interest income
Net nonoperating expense
Net loss

Contributions - capital grants

Increase (decrease) in net position

Equity transfers between programs
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

See auditor's report.

Public HCV ROSS Business Blended Elimi-

Housing & FSS Forf. & FSS CDBG Activities Comp. Unit cocc Subtotal nations Total
509,045 $ -8 -8 -8 -8 - § - 8 509,045 § - 8 509,045
1,313,677 3,942,602 177,485 - - - - 5,433,764 - 5,433,764
- - - 534,783 - - - 534,783 - 534,783
40,767 61,442 - - - 20 97,340 199,569 - 199,569
- - - - - - 430,490 430,490 (430,490) -
1,863,489 4,004,044 177,485 534,783 - 20 527,830 7.107,651 (430,490) 6.677.161
626,525 578,487 - - - 19,181 685,576 1,909,769 (430,490) 1,479,279
3,064 - 177,485 - - - 2,585 183,134 - 183,134
437,518 7,288 - - - - 13,187 457,993 - 457,993
730,241 10,426 - - 7 - 52,551 793,225 - 793,225
124,955 212 - - - - 225 125,392 - 125,392
130,427 1,879 - - 1,009,137 - 13,782 1,155,225 - 1,155,225
- 3,780,140 - - - - - 3,780,140 - 3,780,140
356,039 - - - 7.475 - 22,852 386,366 - 386,366
2,408,769 4,378,432 177.485 - 1,016,619 19,181 790,758 8,791,244 (430,490) 8,360,754
__(545.280)  (374,388) - 534,783 (1,016,619) __(19.161) (262,928) (1,683,593) - (1,683,593)
8 44 - - - - - 52 - 52
8 44 - - - - - 52 - 52
(545,272) (374,344) - 534,783 (1,016,619) (19.161) (262,928) (1,683,541) - (1,683,541)
445,655 - - - - - - 445,655 - 445,655
(99.617) (374,344) - 534,783 (1,016,619) (19,161) (262,928) (1,237,886) - (1,237,886)
- - - (534,783) - - 534,783 - - -
4,807,274 322,207 - - 4.289.035 725.067 488,360 10,631,943 - 10,631,943
4,707,657 $ (52.137) § - 8 - § 3272416 8 705,906 $ 760,215 $ 9,394,057 § - $ 9,394,057

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

39



Sanford Housing Authority
Sanford, North Carolina

Low Rent Public Housing Projects

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget to Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Budget Actual Variance
Operating Revenues
Net tenant rental revenue 3 520,236 $ 509,045 $ 11,191
HUD operating grants 1,074,640 1,313,677 (239,037)
Other revenue 124,500 40,767 83,733
Total Operating Revenue 1,719,376 1,863,489 (144,113)
Operating Expenses
Administrative 750,765 626,525 124,240
Tenant services 3,940 3,064 876
Utilities 323,290 437,518 (114,228)
Ordinary maintenance and operations 441,134 730,241 (289,107)
Protective services 81,377 124,955 (43,578)
Insurance 56,721 102,257 (45,536)
General 60,315 28,170 32,145
Total Operating Expense 1,717,542 2,052,730 (335,188)
Operating Income (Loss) 1,834 (189,241) 191,075
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
Investment income 35 8 27
Interest expense - - -
Total Non-Operating Income (Expenses) 35 8 27
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 1,869 $ (189,233) $ 191,102

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis net income to full accrual net income:

Net income (loss) - per above $ (189,233)
Depreciation expense (356,039)
HUD capital grants 445 655

Net income (loss) - full accrual basis $ (99,617)

See auditor's report.

40



Sanford Housing Authority
Sanford, North Carolina

Housing Choice Vouchers
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget to Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Budget Actual Variance
Operating Revenues
HUD operating grants $ 612,263 3 500,685 $ 111,578
Other revenue 1,000 61,442 (60,442)
Total Operating Revenue 613,263 562,127 51,136
Operating Expenses
Administrative 584,265 578,487 5,778
Utilities 9,220 7,288 1,932
Ordinary maintenance and operations 9,517 10,426 (909)
Protective services - 212 (212)
Insurance 9,554 1,879 7,675
Total Operating Expense 612,556 598,292 14,264
Operating Income (Loss) 707 (36,165) 36,872
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
Investment income 30 44 (14)
Total Non-Operating Income (Expenses) 30 44 (14)
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 737 $ (36,121) $ 36,858

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis net income to full accrual net income:

Net income (loss) - per above $ (36,121)
Depreciation expense -
HCV HAP revenue 3,441,917
HCV HAP disbursements (3,780,140)

Net income (loss) - full accrual basis $  (374,344)

See auditor's report.
41



Sanford Housing Authority
Sanford, North Carolina

ROSS/FSS
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget to Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Budget Actual Variance
Operating Revenues
HUD operating grants $ 194,477 $ 177,485 3 16,992
Total Operating Revenue 194,477 177,485 16,992
Operating Expenses
Tenant services 194,477 177,485 16,992
Total Operating Expense 194,477 177,485 16,992
Increase (decrease) in net assets 3 - $ - $ =

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis net income to full accrual net income:

Net income (loss) - per above $ &
Depreciation expense -
Net income (loss) - full accrual basis $ =

See auditor's report.

42



Sanford Housing Authority
Sanford, North Carolina

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Business Activities
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget to Actual (Non-GAAP)

Operating Revenues
Other revenue
Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses
Administrative
Utilities
Ordinary maintenance and operations
General
Total Operating Expense

Operating Income (Loss)
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)

Investment income
Operating transfers

Total Non-Operating Income (Expenses)

Increase (decrease) in net assets

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis net income to full accrual net income:

Net income (loss) - per above
Depreciation expense

Net income (loss) - full accrual basis

See auditor’s report.

Budget Actual Variance

$ $ - -

7 (7)

1,009,137 (1,009,137)

1,009,144 (1,009,144)

(1,009,144) 1,009,144

$ $ (1,009,144) 1,009,144
$ (1,009,144)
(7,475)
$ (1,016,619)

43




Sanford Housing Authority

Sanford, North Carolina
cocc

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget to Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Budget Actual Variance
Operating Revenues
Other revenue 3 245,835 $ 97,340 148,495
Fee revenue 701,094 430,490 270,604
Total Operating Revenue 946,929 527,830 419,099
Operating Expenses
Administrative 819,248 685,576 133,672
Tenant services - 2,585 (2,585)
Utilities 10,446 13,187 (2,741)
Ordinary maintenance and operations 100,174 52,551 47,623
Protective services - 225 (225)
Insurance 16,850 13,782 3,068
Total Operating Expense 946,718 767,906 178,812
Operating Income (Loss) 211 (240,076) 240,287
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
Investment income 25 - 25
Operating transfers - - -
Total Non-Operating Income (Expenses) 25 - 25
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 236 $  (240,076) 240,312
Reconciliation of modified accrual basis net income to full accrual net income:
Net income (loss) - per above $ (240,076)
HUD Capital Grants -
Depreciation expense (22,852)
Net income (loss) - full accrual basis 3 (262,928)

See auditor's report.

44



Sanford Housing Authority
Sanford, North Carolina

Statement of Capital Fund Program Costs - Uncompleted

September 30, 2022

The capital fund program costs are as follows:

CFP 20 CFP 21 CFP 22
Funds approved $ 1,097,899 $ 672,679 $ 843,161
Funds expended 841,107 672,679 305,433
Excess of funds approved $ 256,792 3 - $ 537,728
Funds advanced $ 841,107 $ 672,679 $ 252,948
Funds expended 841,107 672,679 305,433
Deficit of funds advanced $ - $ - $ (52,485)
Costs incurred during the
current audit period totaled: $ 78,473 $ 380,795 $ 305433

See auditor's report.

45



Barton,

13137 - 66th Street, Largo, FL 33773

Gonzalez

Phone: (727) 344-1040 Fax: (727) 533-8483

& Myers, P.A.

www.bgm.
/& \Certified Public Accountants pha

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commissioners
Sanford Housing Authority
Sanford, North Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate discretely presented component
units of the Sanford Housing Authority (“Authority”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2022, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated June 22, 2023.

Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of Matthews Garden Gilmore, LLC
(who is the 100% member of Matthews Court LLC and Garden Gilmore LLC), “the Discrete Component Unit’, as described in
our report on the Authority's financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of
internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.
The financial statements of the Discrete Component Unit were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal

control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

46



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Authority in a separate letter dated June 22, 2023.
Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal
control and ompllance Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

" A "" /ﬁ ‘!_,Q “'? } Tzﬁlg/‘la./ﬁs- ,
v

Trage

Barton, Gonzalez & Myers B. A
Certified Public Accountants
June 22, 2023

47



Barton,

13137 - 66th Street, Largo, FL 33773

Gonzalez

Phone: (727) 344-1040 Fax: (727) 533-8483

& Myers, P.A.

www.bgm.cpa
A\ Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Commissioners
Sanford Housing Authority
Sanford, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Sanford Housing Authority’s (the “Authority”)'s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each
of Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2022. The Authority's major federal programs
are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Qualified Opinion on Section 8 Housing Vouchers Program

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
Authority complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on the Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program for the year ended September 30, 2022.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of the Authority's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Matters Giving Rise to Qualified Opinion on Section 8 Housing Vouchers Program

As described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, the Authority did not comply with
requirements regarding the CFDA 14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers as described in finding number 2022-
001 for Eligibility.

Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the Authority to comply with the requirements
applicable to that program.

48



Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, reguiations, rules,
and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Authority’s federal programs.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the Authority's
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists.
The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report
on compliance about the Authority's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and
the Uniform Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e I|dentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the Authority’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the Authority’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that
we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Authority's response to the
noncompliance findings identified in our compliance audit described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. The Authority’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of
compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

49



Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However,
as discussed below, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the
deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs as item 2022-001 to be a material weakness.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Authority's response to the
internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings
and Questioned Costs. The Authority’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the
audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

/'Qq *@: ‘/ffwﬁm,pg ?fy?'”’i’,/q’i?-

&~ ..r\i /
l‘v
v

Barton, Gonzalez & yers P A.
Certified Public Accountants
June 22, 2023

50



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

September 30, 2022

Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results:

Financial Statements

Type of report issued on the financial statements: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered

to be material weaknesses? No

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards

Internal controls over major program:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? No

Type of report issued on the compliance for major program:

14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program Qualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)? Yes
Identification of major program: 14.871  Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between

Type A and Type B programs: $750,000
Did the Authority qualify as a low-risk auditee? No
Section Il - Financial Statement Findings:

There were no findings relating to this area for the period ended September 30, 2022.

51



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

September 30, 2022

Section Ill -

Federal Awards:

Findings relating to this area for the period ended September 30, 2022 are as follows:

2022-001 Eligibility — Tenant Files

Section 8 Housing Voucher Cluster (Section 8):

14.871 Section 8 — Housing Choice Vouchers
14.879 Mainstream Vouchers

Material Weakness in Internal Control, Material Noncompliance
Repeat finding of finding 2021-002 from the prior year September 30, 2021

Condition: Out of a total tenant population of approximately 573 tenants, 25 files were selected for testing.
Exceptions were noted as follows:

1 file that did not contain a 214 affidavit for one member of the household, however they did have
a birth certificate showing they were an eligible citizen.

2 files where the 214 affidavit was not checked for one member of the household certifying they
were an eligible citizen, however they did have birth certificates to verify their citizenship.

5 files that did not contain a signed Form 9886 for at least one member of the household age 18 or
over.

1 file where the tenant's income was calculated correctly but had the wrong amount reported on
the 50058, which would have decreased HAP rent by $11.

1 file where the prior year utility allowance schedule was used instead of the current year, however
this had no effect on HAP rent.

1 file where there was no support that an inspection had been done for a new admission.

1 file that did not contain a tenancy addendum to support the contract rent and HAP rent for a
tenant with a project-based voucher.

2 files where there was no support that an EIV report had been processed.

In addition to the above, we noted the following during our new admissions testing (9 new admissions tested):

3 files that did not contain a passed inspection completed prior to move-in.

1 file that did not contain a signed lease agreement or tenancy addendum.

1 file where the request for tenancy approval was not executed until the day after the voucher had
expired.

Criteria: 24 CFR 982.516 requires internal controls to be in place to ensure compliance with HUD
requirements, as well as maintain complete and accurate tenant files. In addition, the Authority’s administrative
plan also requires following proper procedures for determination of HAP and documentation in the tenant files.

Questioned Costs: None.

Effect: The Authority is not in compliance with all of the HUD requirements regarding eligibility and tenant
recertifications, which could result in incorrect total tenant payments for rent and HAP payments to landlords.

Cause: Procedures to ensure compliance with all of the HUD requirements were not being fully implemented.

52



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

September 30, 2022

2022-001 Eligibility — Tenant Files (Continued)

Recommendation: The Authority should correct the deficiencies noted in the tested files and utilize an ongoing
quality control review process on the entire tenant population to ensure proper compliance with the
requirements related to tenant eligibility. Ongoing staff training and timely management reviews should be
utilized to ensure staff is aware of acceptable procedures. In addition, the Authority should review staffing
levels, skill sets and case load.

Views of Responsible Officials of the Auditee: The Authority concurs with this finding and will implement
review procedures and provide ongoing training to staff.

53



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings

September 30, 2022

The prior audit report for the year ended September 30, 2021 contained the following findings:

2021-001 Eligibility — Tenant Files

Public and Indian Housing — CFDA Number 14.850

Significant deficiency in Internal Control, Other matters

Repeat finding of finding 2020-001 from the prior year September 30, 2020 (originally occurred on finding
2017-002 from September 30, 2017)

Condition: Out of a total tenant population of approximately 254 tenants, 25 files were selected for testing.
Exceptions were noted as follows:

1 file where tenant social security income was calculated differently than the support in the file, which
resulted in an overpayment of rent by $1.

1 file where there was no support for the $480 deduction for full-time students, which resulted in an
underpayment of rent by $11.

1 file where the signed personal declaration/application and signed Form 9886 were not present.

1 file where tenant wage income was calculated incorrectly by not using the gross amount on the
paystubs, which resulted in an underpayment of rent by $7.

1 file where there was no support for $2,146 of non-wage income, however this had no effect on the
rent.

1 file where there was no support for $4,092 in unreimbursed medical expenses, which resulted in an
underpayment of rent by $88.

In addition to the above, we noted the following during our new admissions testing (5 new admissions tested):

1 file where the lease agreement was not signed by either party.

Auditor's Recommendation: The Authority should correct the deficiencies noted in the tested files and utilize an

ongoing quality control review process on the entire tenant population to ensure proper compliance with the
requirements related to tenant eligibility and rent calculations. Ongoing staff training and timely management
reviews should be utilized to ensure staff is aware of acceptable procedures. In addition, the Authority should
review staffing levels, skill sets and case load.

Current Status: Cleared.

54



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings

September 30, 2022

2021-002 Eligibility — Tenant Files
Section 8 Housing Voucher Cluster (Section 8):
14.871 Section 8 — Housing Choice Vouchers
14.879 Mainstream Vouchers
Material Weakness in Internal Control, Material Noncompliance

Condition: Out of a total tenant population of approximately 587 tenants, 25 files were selected for testing.
Exceptions were noted as follows:

o 3 files that did not contain 214 affidavits for at least one member of the household, however, they
did have birth certificates showing all were eligible citizens.

o 1 file where there was no support for $480 deduction for full-time students, however this had no
effect on HAP rent.

e 1 file that did not contain a lease agreement, only a signed note from landlord authorizing tenant to
move into the unit.

o 1 file where the lead paint notice was not signed by the tenant.

e 1 file where rent was reported $15 lower on the 50058 than the lease addendum and rent register,
however this had no effect on HAP rent.

e 1 file where there was no reasonable rent documentation, however there was documentation from
the initial move-in that showed comparable rents higher than the current amount.

o 1 file that did not contain a HAP contract.

e 1 file that had support showing the tenant earned $300 per month in unemployment income that
was not reported on the 50058. This had no effect on the HAP rent.

o 1 file where the utility allowance was calculated using incorrect amounts from the utility allowance
schedule, and should have been $38 lower. This had no effect on the HAP rent.

In addition to the above, we noted the following during our new admissions testing (5 new admissions tested):

e 1 file that did not contain a HAP contract
e 1 file that did not contain a 214 affidavit or birth certificate for a member of the household
o 1 file where the Request for Tenancy form was signed but not dated by either party.

Recommendation: The Authority should correct the deficiencies noted in the tested files and utilize an ongoing
quality control review process on the entire tenant population to ensure proper compliance with the
requirements related to tenant eligibility. Ongoing staff training and timely management reviews should be
utilized to ensure staff is aware of acceptable procedures. In addition, the Authority should review staffing
levels, skill sets and case load.

Current Status: Not cleared. See Finding 2022-001.

55



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Corrective Action Plan

September 30, 2022

The following is the corrective action planned by the Authority regarding the current finding:

Finding
No.

2022-001 Eligibility — Tenant Files

Section 8 Housing Voucher Cluster (Section 8):

14.871 Section 8 — Housing Choice Vouchers
14.879 Mainstream Vouchers

Material Weakness in Internal Control, Material Noncompliance
Repeat finding of finding 2021-002 from the prior year September 30, 2021

Condition: Out of a total tenant population of approximately 573 tenants, 25 files were selected for testing.
Exceptions were noted as follows:

1 file that did not contain a 214 affidavit for one member of the household, however they did have
a birth certificate showing they were an eligible citizen.

2 files where the 214 affidavit was not checked for one member of the household certifying they
were an eligible citizen, however they did have birth certificates to verify their citizenship.

5 files that did not contain a signed Form 9886 for at least one member of the household age 18 or
over.

1 file where the tenant’s income was calculated correctly but had the wrong amount reported on
the 50058, which would have decreased HAP rent by $11.

1 file where the prior year utility allowance schedule was used instead of the current year, however
this had no effect on HAP rent.

1 file where there was no support that an inspection had been done for a new admission.

1 file that did not contain a tenancy addendum to support the contract rent and HAP rent for a
tenant with a project-based voucher.

2 files where there was no support that an EIV report had been processed.

In addition to the above, we noted the following during our new admissions testing ( new admissions tested):

3 files that did not contain a passed inspection completed prior to move-in.

1 file that did not contain a signed lease agreement or tenancy addendum.

1 file where the request for tenancy approval was not executed until the day after the voucher had
expired.

Recommendation: The Authority should correct the deficiencies noted in the tested files and utilize an ongoing

quality control review process on the entire tenant population to ensure proper compliance with the
requirements related to tenant eligibility. Ongoing staff training and timely management reviews should be
utilized to ensure staff is aware of acceptable procedures. In addition, the Authority should review staffing
levels, skill sets and case load.

56



SANFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY
Sanford, North Carolina

Corrective Action Plan

September 30, 2022

Action Taken: Errors were corrected in the tested files where corrections could be made. Meaning for example
Form 9886 cannot be regenerated for this audit period but will be obtained during future annual recertification
(also known as the personal declaration/application) periods. Adjustments will be made to the tenant accounts.
Staff was informed to obtain Form 214 during all recertification re-examinations to ensure the required form is
in the file. This way, if it was never obtained or if it was inadvertently purged, the file will always have a copy in
the file for the review period.

File Audit: A file audit (not a 100% audit) was completed for the Housing Choice Voucher Program. A procured
third-party vendor performed this process. However, previous staff members did not make the file corrections.
For months, there was only one staff member in the HCV Department. The department, at this time, is fully
staffed. The current staff is making the file corrections as they come across various issues while moving the
program/department forward. Of importance to note is the hire of a new Chief Operating Officer with over
twenty (20) plus years of HCV experience who will oversee the Section 8 Department. We believe the new
leadership, to include CEO and COO positions will provide the necessary oversight of the HCV program that
will improve the overall performance of staff and the program.

Quality Control Review: After completion of the file audit, the Housing Choice Voucher Program Manager and
their supervisor will be responsible for documented monthly quality control reviews of 10% of files completed
during the month.

Effective Date: June 22, 2023

Contact Information

Marcus Goodson, Interim Executive Director
Sanford Housing Authority

1000 Carthage Street

Sanford, North Carolina 27330

(919) 776-7655

57



Sanford Housing Authority
Sanford, North Carolina

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Federal Program or Disbursements
CFDA Award or
FEDERAL GRANTOR Number Amount Expenditures
U. S. Department of HUD
Public Housing:
Public and Indian Housing Program * 14.850 $ 994631 § 994,631
Public Housing Capital Fund Program * 14.872 2,613,739 764,701
Resident Opportunity & Supportive Services ** 14.870 20,174 20,174
PHI Family Self-Sufficiency Program = 14.896 157,311 157,311
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program * o+ 14.871 3,942,602 3,942,602
TOTAL $ 7,728,457 $ 5,879,419

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Basis of Accounting and Presentation

This schedule includes the federal grant activity of the Sanford Housing Authority and is presented on

the full accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance (Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards). Therefore,
some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation
of the basic financial statements. The Authority has not elected to use the 10% deminimis cost rate.

Reconciliation of Total Federal Awards Expenditures to Financial Data Schedule

FDS Line 70600 HUD PHA Grants $ 5433,764
FDS Line 70610 Capital Grants 445,655

$ 5879419
Program Type

* Type A Program
** Type B Program
+ Major Program

See auditor's report.

58



Financial Data Schedule

60



19

(474 TIRTS LE6'90ZS~ 6LL'EEE'OPS 9/9'96L°LS LOE'9ES 662'9128 ZETLS 0s 9vZ'Z9E'SES L£0'02S 0s oLY'ZLT'ES 829'956'VS $32IN0S2Y JO MOIND P3iI3j3( pue SIISSY [B10) 06T
0s 0s 0s 0s os 0s 0$ 0$ 0s 0$ 0s 0s $32)N0S3Y JO MOIANO P31J2QA 007
£26°2£8'12S 0Z8°/L$- €b1'5S8'LZS 9L0°LSL'LS 0s 0s 0s 0s 8Y6'ZZE'BLS 0 0s vLLOVL'ES S00'SEQ'YS S1288Y UaLIND-UON [B10L 084
0s 0s 0s 0s (3 0% 0s os 0s 0$ 08 SUNJUIA JUION Ul SJUUASAAY| 9/L
ELE'9LTS £LE'9L2S os os os o0s €1E'9.28 0s 0s 0s o0s sj9ssy Jaul0 Lt
0s 0s 0$ [ 0$ 0s 0S 0s 0s 0$ 0s U3LND UON - 3IGEAIZ2aY SIURID £/1
0s o0s o0s os os 0$ os o0s 0 0$ 0s an( 1sed - 1Ua1IND UON - 9|qeAI0aY sabeBuow g ‘sueoT 'SAlON ZLL
ELE'SZ9'TS [or4:WARS €61'Eb9ZS 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0$ €L€'529'Z8 0z8'LLS 1WBLND-UON - 3|qeAI323Y sabebuopy pue sueoT 'saloN |LL
LEZ'9E6'PZS 0s LET'9E6'VZS 9L0°LSL'LS o0s 0s 0s 0s$ SEQ'9V0'BLS 0s 0s LYE'1ZSS SBL'ZLY'PS uonieisa:daq PaILINWNDY Jo 19N ‘s12ssy [euded el 09l
0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s o0s 0s 0s s 0s ainjonaselu) goL
LLO'PBY'LS LLO'PBY'LS LLO'vEY'LS os 0$ 0s o0s os o0s 0s$ as ssaibold u) uononnsuo /9L
LIR'IPLELS LLB'LYLTLS- SE5'GESS- SSE'ZZS- 0s 0s 806'Z6L$ 0s 0s LZ5'ENTS 2S5 LLZ'LLS uoniernaxdsg parenuinady 9gi
eSS SEz'sTss os 0s 0s 0s os 0s 0s 08 cez8zss [T ——
_ E69Zi8s £69'2/8$ 866'EELS SS€'22S 08 0s 656'LLLS 0s 0s$ €00°2$ 8LE'L658 wipy - Asaut k] ‘aimuuing gL
os 0s 03 [ 0s 0s 0s 0$ 0s [H 0s sBulamq - Lauiyoeyy g Wwawdinb3 ‘ainyung £91
Z8VOLE'EES ZBYOLE'EES 150'815$ 0s 0s$ 0s$ v85'280'8LS os 0s 008'99€S Lb0'8LZ VLS sBuiping zaL
£69'2885 £69'2885 SYS'06$ 0$ 0$ 0s 0% 0s 0s S90°'L9ES €BO'LEVS ) puey 19l
6LE'88Z'8LS 2116818 QEV'LLP'ELS 009'sS Lo9E'9ES 662’9128 TE'ZLLS 0$ 862'6€0°LLS LED'0ZS 0s zZoL'sZLS £Z8'1ZES SJaSSY WUINND |BI0) OSL
0s 0s os 0s os os 0s 0s 0s 0s s 3|eS 10) PI3H SIISSY ShL
0s$ 082'S8LS" 082'S81LS 0 os 8£0'098 [ 0s 0§ 0s Z0L'STLS 0s wol4 ang weiboid Jaww| pbi
os 0s os os 0$ 0$ 0s 0s o0s 0s$ 0s : 2190590 Joj LEbL
[ 0s$ 0$ 0s 0s 0s 0% 0s$ 0s 0s 0s$ SUOWAAU| EPL
8v8'00LS 858'90LS 19558 cces 0s os eLLgzs os os os wzess Siesy 18yj0 pus Swsuodc PR EhL
) 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s os 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s Aufiqer 1uaund Jo Wwawhed Joj pajouisay - SIUAUNSIAU| SEL
0s 0§ 0$ 0s 08 0$ 0s 0s 0s 0s 0$ PaIOLISAY - SIUBWISAAU| ZEL
o0s 0s 0$ os 0s$ 0s 0s$ os 0s 0s 0s PaloISaLN - SWaWASAAU| LEL
250'06€'LS LEE'ES 68€'E6E'LS 0s os 89.'66S YrZ'Z598 [ L1Z'0ESS L£0'0ZS 0s 0s 671°268 Inpanog Jo) Jo 1N v feloL 0zt
0s 0$ [ 0s 0s 0$ 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 3|qeAa09) 1S3J81u| paniddy 6ZL
0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s o0s 0s 0$ 0s pneid - Sunoddy [NJIgnoq Joj 3UBMOIY L '8ZL
0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s os 0s 0$ [ 0s Aianooay prely azZL
0EL'LS LEE'ES- L9¥'0LS 0s 0s os 0s 0s os os S 19Y'0LS Wwann) - a|qeAtasay sabebuoy g ‘sueo 'SaloN LZL
os 0s o0s 0s os [ os o0s 0s 0s 0s JAYI0 - SIUNC2JY [NJIGNOQ JOj FIUBMOINY Z'9ZL
696'80LS- 696'80L 8~ 0s 0s 0s 0s 181098~ 0s 0s 08 882°8bS" SJUBUD |- SIUNOJY |N}IGno JO) 3oUEMOlY L'9ZL
SLS'pLLS SLS'PLLS 0s os [ 0s 0SS'L6S 0s 0s S 596'78S SjUeU3] - |GEAIFIIY SIUNODTY OZL
0BL'ELL'LS 08L'ELL'LS 0s 889'228 vbZ'2598 0 8v8'860S 0s 0$ 0 0s . szi
os 08§ [ 0s [ 0§ 0s$ 0s 0s 0$ 0s Jauio - ; ey
96S'EPLS 96G'EVLS 0s 080'+S os os 0 LE0'0ZS 0 0s$ 58’758 51991014 JOYIO ONH - AqeAIIRY SINOIY ZZL
0s [ o0s o0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 08 s199l01d YHd - 21q2AI999Y SIUN020Y 1Z1
BLE'L6LOLS 0s BLYLEL'OLS 6ES LOE'SES 865°LZLS 0s 0s 896°08b'9LS 0s 0s 0§ ESP'ZSLS usej jelo] 0oL
os 0s$ 0s os os 0s 0s 0s 08§ 0s 0s Saniiqer uanng Jo JuawAed Joj paRUISAY - USED GLL
TLE'SHS ZL6'5hS 0s os 0s 0s LZL'LS 0s 0$ 0s L6L'LES susodag AILnoas 1Weua) - used yil
Lis'eey'aLs 1LS'TZY'9LS 0$ L9E'9ES 21T'50L8 [ 0s 655'VLZ'OLS 0s 0s 0$ 08£'99S PajIsaYy JAUIO - Ysed ELL
o0s 0s 0$ 0$ 0§ 0s$ 0§ 0s 0$ 0s [ q pue - papl -yseg ZiL
0E6'ZZES 0£6'ZZES 6€S LzZe'als 0$ 0s$ 882'252S 0s 0s$ 0s Z8Z'vSS PauIsIUN - used LLL
nosay ’ S pajuasald weiboid o
o] wNn3 relogng 2200 aInyajiod #0183 mﬁwﬂ”ﬂ,ﬂﬂauw papueta L_Maw E”zzo&am o | Amwsia-wun 1S 4 o E.an_uzm mwwmnﬁ<_ 1e10) 193lo1g

SS4Vv43vL wavodwo) L'g | Alwed Hid 968'7L

Wapisay 0L8'vL Awunwwod gLz pL

220T/0E/60 PUT JeBA |edsly upny sibuig/paypny 2dA] uoissiwgns
Aewwns jaays aauejeg ap|m Aipu3

ON ‘QH¥O4NVYS
(s€0DN) Awoyiny Buisnoy piojues



29

THT'9TL'9pS 166'9025- 6/L'EEE'9PS 9/9'95L'LS L9E'9ES 662'9128 zeeTs os 9vZ'Z9e'seS LEO'0ZS 08 SLY'ZIT'ES 828'956'7$ 1N - Aunb3 pue saamosay jo smaijul pILIBSq 'SanARr RI0L 009
LL9'09S'PLS 0s 1£9°095'pLS SLZ'09.8 L9E'9ES 86888 906'504S 0§ ¥19'991'GS 0s 0s 9LY'ZLZ'ES 159°20L'vS uonIsod / S19ssy 13N - Aunb3 e1oL €15
SOL'LLL'LS SOL'LLL'LS v1L8'9EZS- 0s 865'88S- 906'50LS 0s 9ET'SOP'LS- 0§ 0§ §L0'15L°2S ZL9'vbS Uoliisod 13N pAMISAIUN YZLS
0Z/'95Z'91LS 0Z1'96Z'9L$ 0s L9E'9ES 0s 0s 0s 6S5'YLZ'9LS 0s 0s 0s 008°S¥S uonisod 19N paldsay b'LLS
¥SL'L0S'ES- 120665~ 6202665 os os 0s 602'2v9'65- os os LYE'iZSs S8LLLO'YS masov ENdES U WOUIRBAUI 19N 9905
0s os o0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s o0s 0s os 0s S32JN0S3Y JO MOJju| Pa113j3g 00K
125'695'LES 1£6'9028" 80S'ZLLLES 195’9665 0s L61'VOES 9Ly'9s 0s 2€9'661'0€$ LEO'0ZS 0s os LLL'6bTS saniiqery 1210 00E
0LL'985'8ZS 0za'LLS- 0E6'€L5'82S 656'8LS 0s L98'soLs 0s 0s$ ZZE'ETY'8ZS 0s 0$ 082'sZS Saniger] JUaLND-UON (€101 0SE
0s s os 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s as os 0s SaNIIqe!T G340 PUE UOISUd PanIdaY [SE
as 0s os 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s saniiqer) S @svd 9SE
0s 0s 0s o$ 0$ 0s 0s os os 0s 0s 131N UON - Aupiqer ueo SSE
LEB'SS LEE'9S 6EL'LS ¥8ss 0s 0s 0s os 0s 0s 80Z'SS JUB1IND UON - $33UasqY palesuadwio)d panIdY bSE
$99'Zv6S 599'Zv6S 0s LLT'S0LS 0$ 0s 808'018$ 0s 0$ 0s 085'02$ 13Y)0 - S3NIIGerT WALN3-UON £GE
0s [or4: DAR 0ze'LLs 0z8'LLs 0s 0$ [ 0s 0s o0s os 0s sBuwmouiog Bunesado - JUaLNg Jo 1aN 1990 uual-buo Zge
¥15'909'22$ ¥15'909'228 0s 0s 0s 0s $15'909°228 0s 0$ 0s 0s anuaasy abeBuopysipalord (ended - WauNg Jo 19N 1gaQg wial-Buo Lse
LOY'600'ES LLL'68LS" 8/5'86L'ES 2054465 os 9£6'861S oLb'gs os 0LE'ZLLLS L£0'0Z$ o0s os €8€'€2Z$ SaNIGer] UILND (BI0L OLE
0s 0§ 0§ 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0$ wauny - Auyqer] ueo? gye
0s 08L'581LS" 092581 95€'09LS os 0s os 0s pZY'ELS 0s 0s 0s o) anq - weboid 12| LbE
28288 28’288 s v26'28S 0s 0$ 0s 0s 08 0s as J3Y10 - SaNNIGer] PINIKY GYE
90E'Y9S5'LS 90E'¥95'LS 0s 0s 0s 0s S0E'95'LS 0s 08 os 0s sanijiqen UaLND JAYO SHE
0$ LEE'ES" LEE'ES LEE'ES 0s 0s$ 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s sBumonog Bunesado - 1ga@ uua)-6uo jo uoiod WaLND bhE
119'9E8S 118'9€88 LY0'VSLS 0s 0s 0s 0£8'28S 0s 0s 0s 0% anuaaay abebuopssioalold [ende) - 1geQg wiar-6uo jo uoivod WauNd EvE
| swss 522258 0s 0s 5 0§ S68'VLS 0s 0s [ 0EE'LES aNUSADY PIUIEIUN ZYE
ZLE'SYS ZLE'SHS 0s 0s 0s 0s LZL'pLS 0s [H 0s L6L'LES susodaq Anoas Wweual Lbe
0s 0s 0s 0s os 0s 0s 0$ 0s 0s 0s JUBWUIAA0Y JAYIQ - 3|qeAed SIUNOJIY EEE
0s 0s 0s os 0s 0s 0s$ os 0 0s 0s spalold YHd - diqeAed Wunoooy Zeg
0s 0s 0s 0s 0$ 0$ 0s$ 0s 0s 0s 0§ sweiboid YHd ONH - djqeked sjunoddy LEe
zs5e'ses 26T'SES 0s 0s [\ [ ZST'SES [ 0s 0s 0$ ajqeded 1sa131U| pANINY GZE
0s 0s os 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s os 0s Aupgery AsuaBunuod panidy pZe
01628 0628 esbs 0528 [ 0s 0$ os 0s 0$ FAx A A UoNIoY JUBLIND - S3JUASqY palesuadwo) paniody ZZe
8LLOLS 8LL'OLS 05¥'LS €LE'ES 0s 0s 08 1098 0s 0s 88Z'S$ s|qehed saxe] |lo)edrabem paniody |ze
0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0$ 0s 0s 0s 0s anQ 1sed skeq 06< 2iqehed sWNodY ELE
L1€'8LES LLE'8LES vZ8'15$ 68Y'ZLLS 9Ly'9s 0s 906'09§ os 0s 0s ZvL'ovLs sheq 06 => 2iqeked SUNJY ZLE
0s 5 0s 0s os 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s [ JEIPI2AQ Hueg LLE
UN0! nuuSLhww wesboy, RIS
oy W3 E— 0000 | omosmonsa | Selronsoeio | popuaig-wn | amoddne | (S0t | fousneges [USUSSRURDL Sy e,
SS4 V43 bl wapisay 028 bl wavodwod L'g :Awed Hid 968°bL TynuRion Lz b
Z2Z0T/0E/60 PUT JeaA [easld Jpny e|buig/papny -8dA) uoissiwans

Aewwng jaa3ys asuejeg apim Apuz
ON 'QY¥O4NYS
(5e0DN) Awoyiny BuisnoH piojues



€9

0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s SaNINN - SuoNNQUIUOD Wauag adkoldw3 00LE6
828'PPLS 828'bYLS asLs oes os o0s 0s 0s 0s 0$ ove'bhLS 19135 009E6
0s$ 0s 0s o0s os os 0s$ 0§ 0s 0s 10987 00SE6
0s 0s 0s 0s os os 0s 0s 0s o0s 12n4 00bE6
128'951S L28'95LS 128 0s os o0s SL8'6SS 0s 0s$ 0s SEO'E0LS se9 00EE6
61L'98LS 640'98LS 298'2LS v2z'LS 0s 0s ZEL'9LS 0§ os 0$ 196'68 Auomndai3 00ze6
8/5'Z0ES 815°20ES arLs vES [ 0s 915'202$ 0§ 0§ 0s 788'66$ Jaiep 00LES
T beleals 0s veL'caLS seczs 08 0s vi10zs LLEZ5HS 08 0s vo0'ES S0IAIS 1UBU3 (€101 00SZ6
6ES'LS 6E5'LS os 0s 0s 0s os 0s$ 0s 6€5°LS 13YJ0 - SOIBS WBUI] 00KZ6
£92'6ZS 191628 0s 0s 0s ELE'ES 0s b6E'9ZS 0s [ 0s $301A13G JUBU3| - SUONNGUIUOD Yjauag daAaidwl 00EZ6
OLL'YS oLL'YS S85'28 0 os os o os 0s 0$ SZS'LS SIS0D UONED0|IY 00ZZ6
8LLLPLS BLLIbLS 0s 0% 0s L08'9LS 0s L16'0ELS 0$ 0s 0s saueeS - SIOIAIAG 1UBUa) 00LZ6
0s 0s 0$ [ 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 234 Juawabeuey 195y 00026
" eshioens 06Y'0EFS- 696'L6E'ZS 95'6895 0$ 18Y'8LSS LBL'6LS 0s 081'ZavS o 0 0$ S25'9298 aaensiuiwpy - Bunesado (2101 000L6
STL'LZLS SZL'IZLS 000'LLS 508'LZ$ SSL'8LS 0s v06'v9s 08§ 0s 0s 199'v$ 12410 00616
0§ 0s os os 0s o0s 0§ 0s 0$ os PE3UIAAO PAIEOOIY OLBLE
Los 198 ars- os 0s os 0s 0s 0s 60LS [aAeil 008LE
¥20'pas 20'b9S 620'5L$ 852'6S 0s 0s 9.9°6E$ os 0s 195'5$ asuadx3 12627 00416
_weEs Zve'zzLs 190'9€2$ 0£5'p9LS 9zvs 0s$ L8L'SLZS o0s 0s 0s$ YOL'0LS sasuadx3 22JO 00916
LvZ'L6LS LPZ'L6LS S6¥'6L8 PBY'SES 0s 0s 269'LES 0s 0s 0s 0L5'vPS BANEASIUILIPY - SUONQUIUOD auag aa/oldwl 00SLE
8TPTLS 8ZY'ZLS pL8s 985S 0s 0s 9.6°0LS 0$ 0% [ zs$ Bunasjrey pue BuISILAPY 00VLE
os SPO'SLS- SP0'SLS 09v'eSS 0s o0s 0s 0$ 0s os 585128 a4 Buidaax-%008 OLELE
08 SP'SSES- SYY'SSES LEL'00LS os 0s o0s 0s 08 0s 80€'S5ZS 224 Juawabeueyy DOELE
SEB'BES SEB'GES L65'6S z88°LLS os 0 0s 08 0s 0s Z9E'LLS saa4 Bumpny 00ZL6
€0'LLBS E0p'LLES YEY'EEES 508'081$ 0s S LSL'SZLS 0s 0s 0§ EIZ'LLLS saue|es dANEIISIUWPY 00LLE
09v'268'8S 06Y'0EVS- 056'ZZE'6$ 0£8'2Z5$ L9€'9ES LTL'196'ES 0z$ vIL'0ZS T65'69L°LS LLE'LSLS £81'VESS 0s Z51'60€°ZS anUaA3Y [BI0L 0000/
0s o0s 0s 0s 0$ 0s 0s o0 0 P310UISaY - IUWIOIU| JUWNSIAU| 000ZL
0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s siessy [eudeD jo (eS UO 5507 JO UIED 009LL
£60'020'LS £60'020'LS OvE'268 LOE'9ES 180'SZS 0zs$ 0s 8b2'S28S 0$ 0s 0 9NUDAIY JAUIO 00SHL
¥ZT'ss pzz'ss 0s 0s 08 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s K19A003Y pneld 00VLL
0s os 0s 0$ 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s S19sSY JO 3[eS JO 150D OLELL
0s 0s os 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0$ 3|es 10 pjaH S19SSY JO uollIsodsiq WoJj Spaadoid 00ELL
08 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s awosu| 1saia)| aBeBuow 00ZLL
89€°/LS 89€°/LS 0$ bos 0s os 9LE'LLS 0s 0s 0s as PalaNSIUN - IWIUL UBUNSIAUL 0OLLL
€8.'vESS £82'PESS o0 0s s 0s 0s 0s £8L'VESS 0s 08 S|UBID JUBWILIAA0S JAYIO 00BOL
[ 06¥'0EPS- 06V'0EPS 06¥'0EVS aNUAA3Y 334 (2101 00L0L
s 0s 0s 0$ 394 13310 05201
0s 0s 0s 334 201028 UM WoId OvL0L
08 SY0'SLS- SPO'SLS Sb0'SLS 224 Buidaay yoog 0£L0L
0s o0s 0s 0s 99 uawabeuey 1ossY 0ZL0L
0s SbP'SSES- ShY'SSES ShY'SSES 294 juswabeuew 0L0L
Ss9'shrS 559'sybS 0s SS9'SYPS sueIo fended 0L80L
YOL'EEY'SS YOL'EED'SS os Z09'ZV6'ES 0$ bLL'0ZS 0s LLE'LGLS 0s 0 LIGELE'LS siues Bunesado vHd aNH 00902
ELS'SEV'LS 0$ ELS'SEP'LS 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 925'9268 0s 0s 0s S¥0'605$ 3nuaAay luBUa] [B10] 0050/
0es 0ES 0s 0s 0s 0s os 0 0s 0ES 13410 - 3NUIAY URUA] O0YOL
EPS'SER'LS EPS'SER'LS o0s 0 0s 0 825'9265 0s os SL0'6058 3NUBAY [EIUSY 1UBL3L 13N 00EDL
RIO00 . arind pajuasald wesboiy faweo
felo) w3 |eloigng 2202 E:m__muo(.._uw.”wmw -w”“..”_ann, runum_nmw ,wwwcum_.monw_wﬂ pure Ayiniioddo Eu:anM - ::d Py o w”n;ﬁ.:ﬂ_. |e10] walolg
WepIsay 0£8°bL D49 AIMEIHIA 968 YL | inwwios gLz b1
220Z/0€E/60 -pu3 JedA [eosly upny ajbuig/paipny @dh ) uoissiwgns
K dx3 pue ¥ apIm Apu3
ON 'a¥04NVS

(se00N) Awoyiny Buisnoy piojues




0s Siiviis LIS os os 08 os os 0s os os SLLYLLS Yyl Sunessdg oLogt
6b5'S50°0LS 06b'0EbS- 6E0'98Y'0LS 95.'06.5 0s 2EV'RLE DS LeL'6Ls vLL'0Z8 S6.'969'tS LLE'SLS os 619910'tS 69,'800'S SO ), oo
08 0s 0s 08 08 0s 0s 0s 0s 08 0s e ol S99, SUmo0, 0004
Spun4 [BIUBWILIBA0D - 1WaWAed [edIoUld 1990 00LL6
Spund [euawuiaacs) - shkepno [ended 009.6
....... os 0s oS 0s os os 0s 0s 0$ 0s 08 $98s07 pneld 00SL6
vLT6ESS VIT'EESS 258'22$ 0s 0s 0s 806'Z54S 0s 08 SIv'LS 6€0'95ES 2suadi3 uonersaidag 0ovL6
9L0'oLs 910'9LS 0s 9L0'9Ls 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0§ 0s urhidenod dvH 0SEL6
pZL'vIL'ES PZL'PIL'ES 0s bZL'YOL'ES 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0$ 0s sjuawked ssuelstssy BuisnoH 00EL6
a4 08 08 0% os os 0s 0s 0s 08 0$ 0s pazijendes-uoN - sasso AljenseD 00Z.6
08 08 08 o8 os 0s os 0s 0% 08 0$ asueuajuiey Aleuipioenxy 00LL6
SZE'951°Es 0s SZE'asLEs 910°0vZ5- L9E'9ES SEP'69E €S 191615~ os sor'1zzs os £8L'VESS vbL'600'LS" 2zy'95zs wemiedcy Bueindo saso anuswey Bunesedo jo 5903 00046
SEL'9EL'SS 06 '0ES- 5z9'991'98 906'29L5 0s Z67'8658 18L'6Ls vL1'028 188'LY5'LS LLE'SLS 08 vhL'600'LS 0£L'750'28 sasuadiy Buessdo e101 00696
oLS'bbzs os oLs'rhzs 0s o8 0s os 0s oLsppzs 0s 0s os 0s 1800 uoneziowy pue asuadia jsaial| (€101 00496
os os 0 0s os os 0s os os os s 900 SNWN 00 Ip USHEZyIONTY DELO0
0L5'bhES oLS'bhzs 0 0s 0s 0§ 0L5'hZs 0s 0s 0s 0s {wis) Buoy pue ous) erqehed seloN Uo a1 02/96
08 0% 08 08 o8 0s os 0% 0s 0$ 0$ a|qeded (spuog 10) abeBuow Jo 1saiaul 0L96
" otemol'Ls 0s 9€8'80L'LS os 0s 08 0s 0s 925115 0s s 9EL'600'LS 0s1'928 sasuadx [e19U29 J2UI0 (2101 00096
05 0s 0s 0s os 0s os 0s o8 0s 0s esuadiq sousiones 00896
" os os os os os 0s 0s os 0s 0$ 0s 90 Fen pen oo
8EL'600'LS 8EL'600'LS 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0$ 8E£L'600'LS 0$ sabeBuop - 193p pea 00596
SE6'S8S 5£6'68$ 0s 0s 0s 0s 865095 0s 0s 0s L56'52S fusy weudL - 199p ped 00V96
0s 0s 0s 0s 0s s 0s s [ 0s s saxe] Jo nar] ul sjuawked 00E96
08 o8 08 os os 0s 0s os 0s s os SO pasusduiD LRSS
£9LELS €9L'ELS 0s 0s o0s os 0£6'0LS 0s 0s 0s €ee'zs sosuadig jriauag Jaulo 00296
65b'991LS 0s 657'991LS Z8L'ELS 0s 68'LS os 0s Zrs'ers 0s 0s 1s- 15T'Z0LS munweld souemnmul 101 00196
os 0s 0s 0s s [ 0s 0s [ 0s 0$ JoUEINSU| 13YIO IV OPLO6
19L'ELS 19L'ELS 810°8 S55°LS 0s 0s 0% 0s 0s 0s v65'vS uonesuadiod sUaLYIOM 0EL96
Is- st 0s os os os 0s 0s os L5 os Souesnsu| Auder] 02196
€62'ESLS €6ZESLS v9L'9s vzes 0s 0s ZvS'8ps 0s 0s [ £99'26% souBInsy| Apadoid 01196
029'0LLS 0s 0z9'0LLS szzs os zzs 0s os 9zZ'shs as as os SSE'zLS o s o s
08 0s 0s 08 0s 0% 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s SIS A0l - SUONNGUIVOD Yjauag dakoidw3 00SSE
0s 0s 0s 0s 0s os 0s os os os os Sl i il e
0Z9'0LLS 029'0LLS szzs zizs 0s 0s 82Z'shS 0s 0s 0s 5S6'VZLS 51500 198U JaUI - SAIAIAS 3MIDIN0N] 00ZSE
os os os os os os os 0s os os os JOg 1 990G SNPIRIJ 00198
L20'0LL'LS 0s 190'0LLLS L55'ZeS 0s o9zy'oLs [ os 9E8'9LES 0§ os I3 LYZOELS e yrn e
96¢898 96€ 895 1s0'cs 08 0s 0§ 0s 0s 0s 0s SYE'S9s Areupio - koD Wjeuss eedordui3 00SvE
¥S6°L05S ¥S6'205S vLLVLS 908'9§ 0s os 6£0'991S os 0s os seeozes R2RI00 SIAERAO pUS SOURUNIIEY LEUIRID O0EYE
€9Z'L9LS £9Z'L9LS rre'es 0Z9'es 0s 0s 2.5'92S 0s 0s 18 0zZZ'LeLS 1aylo pue siet - o pue Aeupio 00Zb6
8vp'TLES avy'zLeS 209'vZ8 as s as SZZ'TLS 0s 0§ 0s LhE'EZZS 10qe - suonerado pue asueusiulen Kieuipio 001b6
950°L6.$ os 950'L6.S 18LELS 0s 802'LS os 0s €90'€E€S 0s 0s 0s BLSLEVS SSMINN 18101 000€6
0s 0s os 0s 0s 0s 0§ 0s 0$ 0$ 0s 0nese
oo FEETNET — SR
ie10y wna (eiolans 2209 - u;ﬂ_uum il Wi oy vc“n_m&%mﬁ ».uﬂ_u.wwmn._”_j: i B ] e le1oL 3loiq
ssdvd3vL wopsoy oyt | MUOMWOO LS {AMMESHId 9B YL L on g7y

220T/0€/60 'PU3 JeaA [edsiy

ypny 8buig/paypny 2dk )| uoissiwang

Arwwng asuadx3 pue anuaaay apim Liju3

ON '‘Q4O4NVS

(5€00N) Auouiny Buisnoy piojues




S9

0s 0s$ os 0s spund Jope4 Buisno Juawadeday LOGEL
o0s 0$ 0§ 0s$ slawAed 30N3S 1930 d440 OLSEL

0s 0s 0s 0s saseyaind ainpnaselul 099LL

0$ os 0s 0s y dw) pi 1 059LL

0s [ [ 0$ 4 1y - 1 9 2iMuInd ovoLL
0s 0s os 0s saseyaind Buljamg - wawdinb3 g anpuing 0E9LL
S59'SYbS SS9'5hPS os 559'SPhS saseyoind Buiping 0ZgLL
0s 0s 08 0s saseyding pue OL9LL
S ELZ'6618- €12'661$" useD ss30x3 0/ZLL
vLL0L vLL0V 0o 8zLL 0 0 LE9L 0 0 0 6002 paseaT] sUlUOW UN JO J2QWNN OLZLL
69191 69L9L 0 veLLL 0 0 oveZ 0 0 0 ShET 2lqelieAY SUIIOW UUN O6LLL
as 0s 0s Aynb3 sjuawkey asueisissy Buisnop 0gLLL
960895 96885 g6b 985- s e B b L

12410 - $1UN02Y [NJIGnoq Joj aouesmolly Ul s3bueyd 00LLL

sway Bunamg - SIUNo29Y INJIAN0Q Joj aduemolly Ul sabueyd 060LL

Aungen syjauag aouesards/ I3 [e10ads Ul sabueud 0goLL

Awiqer] uonisues | uoisuad paziuBosaiun ul sabueyd 0L0LL

aouejeg Aunqer Jabunuo) ul sabueyd 09011

2ouejeq aauasqy pajesuadwo) vl sabueyd 0soLL

0s 0s €8L'PESS [ 0s 0s 0s 0s €8.'vESS 0s 0s $1013 JO UORD3IOD PUE Sijsuel) AUnb3 ‘suaunsnipy poliad Jouid OvOLL
£p6'LEQOLS £06'LEQOLS 09€'88YS 0s 1022268 190'521$ 0$ 0s 0s 0s SE0'68Z VS v/Z'108'vS Aunb3 Buluuibag 0EOLL
0s 0s 0s 0s s s oS 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s sjuawied |edisuid 199 lenuuy pasnbay 0ZoLL
8ZL'8Z6'ES os 8TL'8Z6'ES 826'2928 L9E'9ES S0L'0LpS- 19L'6LS" 0s vL9'99L°GS 0s E8L'VESS 6L9'9L0'LS- L19'668- sasuadxg 8101 (Japun) J2A0 2nUBA3Y |10 jo (AdualoleQ) SS29%3 0000
118°L60'SS 0s L18°L60'SS 0s o0s 0s 0s s 219°160°6S s 0s os 0s (sasn) seoinos Buoueul} 12410 (B10L 00LOL
0s 0s 0s oS 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 1IN0 - weiboid pue aloid usamyaq s1ajsuell rE00L
0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s$ os 0$ [} 0s U] - paloid pue weiBoid usamiaq siajsue’] £600L
o8 0s 0$ IO J9jsuel | yseD $530x3 199(0id JaW Z600L
0s [ 0s u[ Jajsues ysed ssaoxg aloid Jawl Le00L
£18°160'SS £18°L60'SS 0s 0s 0s 0s L18°160'SS 0s 0s 0s (3 (ssouten 13N) sway| enads 08001
os os os 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s ssoyuleD 19N ‘sway| Aleuipioesx3 000k

sajeg Auadosd Wolj spaavold 09001

SpUOg PUE SUBOT 'SIION LIOJ SPIFV0IJ DSDOL

0s 0$ os 0s 0s 0s$ 0% 0s 0s oS 0s WuN Wwauodwod oywoyy s1sjsuel) Bunesado 0POOL
0s 0s 0s os os 0s 0% 0s 0$ 0 0s$ JUBWWaA0S Aewiid oywoy) siajsues) Bunesado 0£00L
0s SLL'VILS SLLPLLS 0s [ o0s 0s 0s 0s 0s 0s SLLLLS- nQ sajsuen bunesado 0Zo0L
[EETNE swein
N0y I pauasalg wesboid
SI2YONOA @010YD :  PIPUBIE - WU SINANIY
el IRE] |lelogng 0202 3InNNap04 M010s3 Buisnon 1281 929 pue o 10 - un 1Y IS 4 ooig wawdopreg ssauisng L 1210} alord
sS4vIapL wauodwop L'g i Alwed Hid 968'FL

uapIsay 0L8'vL Awnwwod gLz vl

CZ0T/0E/60 'PU3 JBBA [BOSI4 wpny ejBuig/peipny 2dk) uoissiwgng

£ s dx3 pue ¥ 2pim Apu3
ON ‘GHO4NYS
(5e00N) Awoyiny BuisnoH piojues



